THE RELATIONS OF FOOD SECURITY WITH PHYSICAL AND MENTAL HEALTH IN CANADA

TRACY C. BARRETT







The Relations of Food Security with Physical and Mental Health in Canada

By

Tracy C. Barrett

A thesis submitted to the School of Graduate Studies in partial fulfillment of the

requirements for the degree of Master of Science

Psychology Department

Memorial University of Newfoundland

April 2011

St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador, Canada

Abstract

The relations of food security with indications of physical and memol health of 22,217 Canadians aged below 15 verse examined using data from the 2004 Canadian Community Itealih Servey (CCHS). Surprisingly, 23.2% of the food insecure republicant commined relations, 19.6% were middle liquid health of the control and the serve likely to monke cigence and has a compared to food secure adults, were more likely to monke cigence and has a compared below the control and the serve likely to monke cigence and has a compared below the control and the serve likely to monke cigence and has a formation of the server abused on adults were likely to of thin and sequentity and an enders headth a poor, previous physical or mental linesses, perserve friet physical and mental headth poor, perserve the data servers and the set of the server food security and measures of mental their communities. The relationships between food security and measures of mental hadth were metricular based.

Acknowledgments

I would like in these yn spervines, Nafoled Bekinwork fer hie gudanes, patienes and ansistenes, and yn ommittene mennhen, Kamendh Fersder am Utarbars Robedonoit ne yweisig her fungliga al consergement darling the experimental dreige parse of the thesis. As well, Y sould like as ested my bankes to Darcy Halfen for herbigen are wither data analysis and IW Northeniae Carrier for Hoht herbigen an charled to regularize the star and the sea used in the rady. Finally, I am sharkful ten y family for standing by sea themph his very difficult precess. It would not have been possible toothe data.

Table of Contents

Abstract	ii
Acknowledgments	.iii
Table of Contents	iv
List of Tables	_v
Appendices	vi
Introduction	1
Research Objectives	3
Lifespan	4
Control Variables.	8
Behaviors That Affect Physical Health	.10
Food Security and Physical Health Outcomes.	.15
Food Security and Mental Health.	.17
Expected findings	_20
Method	.22
Participants.	.22
Data Collection Method	22
Modules	.24
Results and Discussion.	29

Demograp	phie Data	
Statistical	Analyses	

Behaviors that Affect Physical Health and its Relation to Food Security	37
Food Insecurity and Direct Physical Health Outcomes	42
Food Insecurity and Mental Health Outcomes	46
Summary and Conclusions	49

.53

.69

References.....

Appendices ...

List of Tables

Table 1.	Summary of the literature on food insecurity and BMI in children
	and adults
Table 2.	The estimated percentages and frequencies in four categories by age72
Table 3.	The estimated percentages and frequencies in four categories by
	children's living arrangement
Table 4.	The estimated percentages and frequencies in four categories by
	adult living arrangement
Table 5.	The estimated percentages and frequencies in four categories by marital
	status in ages 19+75
Table 6.	The estimated percentages and frequencies in four categories by
	gender from birth to 18 and 19+
Table 7.	The estimated percentages and frequencies in four categories by
	income
Table 8.	The estimated percentages and frequencies in four categories by education in
	adults aged 25+
Table 9.	The percentages and frequencies of individuals who report smoking in
	various categories in ages 31 to 71+

Table 10. The percentages and frequencies of individuals who reported drinking

	alcohol in various categories in ages 14 to 18 and 31 to 71+80
Table 1	. The percentages and frequencies of the number of hours per week spent
	engaged in sedentary activity in various income categories in ages
	12-17
Table 1	2. The mean BMI for individuals aged 2 to 71+
Table 1	b. The percentages and frequencies for each BMI classification in individuals
	aged 2 to 71+
Table 14	8. The percentages and frequencies of individuals who rate their health in
	various categories in ages 12 to 71+
Table 15	. The percentages and frequencies of individuals who rate their satisfaction
	with life in various categories in ages 12 to 71+86
Table 16	. The percentages and frequencies of individuals who rate their sense of
	belonging to community in various categories in ages 12 to 71+
Table 17	. The percentages and frequencies of individuals who rate their stress in
	various categories in ages 15 to 71
Table 18	. The percentages and frequencies of individuals who rate their mental health in
	various categories in ages 12 to 71+

Appendices	
Appendix A	.90
Appendix B	103

Introduction

Tool exercity is defined a adquarte accent to afficient, star, and antition food. It can be experienced at the community, howehold, or invihibal level (Tarank, 2007). Commanly food exercity is defined as a statistic where all commanity residents obtain a star, outmany law, expendie, mutritically adquarte data through a summation feed of seven the muterimers of trafficers and social plates. However, the start of the observation access market many possible and a start and access and the problems of food access market many possible in the argumation of the ode system (Tarank, 2007). However, the start of the start and the start plates of the start and the start individuals and however the start and the start plates of the start and the start individuals and however the argumation and personally acceptable food to user thrief datary negativenests for a productive and healty tife (Statistics Canada, 2004).

Abthough food accurity has been housily defined, researcher have used afference appeck devices. These web pecklosek and use the 1990 year and over 2000° used either one question, "In the part 20 days, have year hear ensured about having ensempt food for year year limity?" ("Generated Derrone, Leeve, Alderberg, Alderberg, 2001) the Bahaintic Conflict Solar to manuer food over accurity (Gendall, Gone, A. Houpily, 2001) (1995; Ok & Houg, 2003). The Radaetic Conflict Solar is enhance may endomine that contains fire items directed at the household, four questions perturband and questions perturbang califorms in the lowed Ald the questions even qualitative and quantitative componence of food accurity and it yields as acle which foor estimption: to store, household there, millions in the lowed Alder and dish haves. The lasts on all the stores, household them is the lowed Alder and dish haves. The lasts on all the stores, household haves. successfully to differentiate among groups of households experiencing a greater severity food insecurity and hunger (Kendall et al., 1995).

Researchers who published more recently used the US Department of Agriculture (USDA) Household Food Security Survey Module (Blumberg, Bialostosky, Hamiliton, & Briefel, 1999). This is an eighteen-item questionnaire that contains eight questions partaining to children in the hyperbold and yields a child food security index. It also contains ten questions pertaining to adults and yields household food security index (see Anoendix B). The child food security index is seen as identifying a more severe form of food insecurity than the household food security index. The survey also produces four categories of food security: food secure, food insecure without hunger, food insecure with moderate hunger, and food insecure with severe hunger (Bickel, Nord. Price, Hamilton, & Cook 2000). Some researchers have used the short form of this survey, which excludes the eight questions pertaining to children, two items that indicate severe hunger in adults, and the first question which indicates the least severe level of food insecurity. This shortened survey generates three categories: food insecure without hunger, food insecure with human, and a food secure category (Rhamberg et al., 1999). In the present study, the longer version was used.

Food insufficiency is the most severe form of food insecurity (Tarania, 2005). It is categorized within the food security scales, as food insecurity with moderate hunger or food insecurity with severe hanger. Food insufficiency means that households are actually going without food to some extent. Therefore, it does not include those who are food insecure without finders. Some researches via trent of food intellictions: . Sometimes, food insecurity and food insufficiency have been used interchangeably in the literature even though they are not the same concept.

In 1994-1999, approximately three million Candians (10:73) reported being worried abox to thanking encough field in the previous year (Cate & Chene, 2001). A neuro the Candiane, 41% reperiorized here not server of mof field meteority, hunger, Preliminary analysis of comparable data from the 2004-01 Canadian Cammunity Health Sarvey (CCIRS) dawas an increase, with 14.7% of humeholds preparing some degree of field meteory (CCIRS) dawas an increase, with 14.7% of humeholds preparing some degree of field meteory of the comparable data from the 2004-01 Canadian Cambo. (2005) is use Ganda that 82% of Canadian basedbase trave of the configuration 2004.

Research Objectives

To do accerdy has been standie in people of all agos has most of the information is alout adults. Addinogal these have been a large number of corsos-sectional databases and adults containing information about for do access, only of the investigations have taken about ago and approximation about for do access, only of the investigation have taken about age and peoples do enso-sectional lifespan report (Dirons, Waldaley, & Radmer, 2011; Voronko & Taranak, 2001; Gascianito, Doddes, Vegi, & Stewart, 2009; Lifespan executed is important uses of the effects of for distanceity changes with age. There are several longitudinal matches hared on a single database containing information and climatizety studies changes, adding & Limons, 2002; Pocif, Prongille, & Jones, 2004; e. G. & Bohor, 2006; Branges, Adding & Limons, 2005; December, we have initial information about the effects of food security on age, colout, and lime ef measurement, the vanishes that affects the influence of calture and development. Proteomers, brance the distribution of pathotaches, 1 are orent for accurative parameters have might being and the standies of the anticeles of the outpathotaches about the standies of the s the fold service effects are of principle interest in very low income sources (Atam, Grammer-Strawn, & Charee, 2003). Basietic, 2003; Narei & Fongillo, 2007; Kairei, Torsmend, Malgar Golaro, Fjal, & Carsello, 2004; Ohon, 2005; Torsment et al., 2001). Thus, we have limited information shout the effects of food security in mean and higher income granged and it is important to dottmine whether food security interesting moder and virtualization. In an atomic to basis the interesting and endormalizations, a statistical Canadian database was selected to which errors sectional lifespan information about food security can be gareered arous garder and income. In the full-bring accelition research reference to the devices in hotely reviewed.

Lifespan

Discost et al. (2003) used removacional data from the National Handh and National Examination (NHANES) III survey, a national VS study. They examined whether district planck there have earlaholt from lood immificient families compared to adult from too a utilizent families. Adults varied an age from 20 meV and any ware separated into two agroupe, 20-59 and 260 for statistical analysis. Younger adults from food inmificient toosubodive seconoporal by surger adults from food autificient boundedds. The same was done for older adults. They food that younger adults from food inmificient bounded reported hower initiate or facilitation in the initiation in superable compared to the food afficient counterports. Utilized his from and increasing out their food autificient counterports. Using only how age runger initiation are compared to their food autificient counterports. Using only how age runger initiation after compared to their food autificient counterports. Using only how age runger initiation after compared to their food autificient counterports. Using only how age runger initiation after compared to their food autificient counterports. Using only how age runger initiation after compared to their food autificient counterports. Using only how age runger initiation after compared to their food autificient counterports. Their inition from the thouse the their bases their the food autificient counterports. Their inition from the thouse the thouse the theory of theory o

increase food security, one needs to know if there are particular age groups to focus on or if it is equally important to all age groups.

Conservitional data from the Canadian Matinal Population Health Survey was to by Vasentia and Taranka (2003). They included abilitem and ability and 12 to 171-Age and goods were utables in all analyses. The prevalence of food wordly in Canada and in relationships to physical, mentil, and wordly have have an entitled by servey and that in advisables in the observation Macada were rower Rikey to repret poserline health, poor functional methods were reactively us report possible health, poor functional methods were reactively us report possible health, poor functional methods were reactively us report heart diseases, and poor sense and used anyones. The addition, the yourse meet Backy to report heart diseases, diseases, table hold overcas, and food allergine.

Food insecurity has a range of regardise effects on physical and sensith bolks Goncientis et al. (2009) used a sense sectional databates their included Canadian shifted and alma and 21 Sel 5. Participants were prouged for agri categories; 1245, 46-55, 56-66 and 65-97 years. They investigated the proportion of people who were food insecure or food secure in diabetics compared to non-diabetics. These the owner datagored with diabetics leaders and configured to the security of the protection of people who were food insecurity wera the contract. The proportion of people who were food insecure decaused as agri increased in both diabetics and nondifficulties. Thus, the mejority of people has were food insecures: The proportion of people who were food insecure decaused as agri increased in both diabetics and nondifficulties. Thus, the mejority of people has were food insecure to regard 24-55 years. The remaindure of the findings regreted howe by Concellent et al. (2009) were generated by collepsing across their entire peoplation. People in food insecure the model switch diabetes were lowed likely protoced in the orthogot across the diabetes and the soft people with the peoplation. The people in food insecure the people for find and decause were lowed likely protoced in the orthogot across the diabetes and the soft people across the diabetes people in the people in the diabetes and the soft people in the people in the people in the diabetes and the people in the diabetes were lowed likely the people in the diabetes were lowed likely people in the diabetes were lowed likely people in the people in the diabetes and the diabetes were lowed likely people in the diabetes and the diabetes were lowed likely people in the diabetes were lowed likely people in the diabetes and the diabetes were lowed likely people in the diabetes and the diabetes were lowed likely people in the diabetes and the diabetes were lowed likely people in the diabetes and the diabetes were lowed likely people in the diabetes and the diabetes and the

vegetables, having one or more alcoholic drinks per day, and being moderately active or active compared to food secure dlubetics. In addition, they were less likely to be former smokers and more likely to be current smokers. Food insecure diabetics were more likely to rate their general health, mental health, statisfaction with life, and self perceived stress in negative or securit terms.

Four sets of investigators used data from the Early Childhood Longitudinal Study containing information on children entering kindergarten through grade five. Winicki and Jemison (2003) explored whether food insecurity at kindergarten entry affected learning and growth during the kindergarten year. They found that food insecurity in the fall of kinderearten was not associated with physical growth across the kindergarten year, but it was associated with impaired learning in math from fall to spring of the kindergarten year. Jyoti et al. (2005) investigated whether food security status affected children's academic performance (math and reading), weight gain, and social skills from kindergarten to grade three. All variables were measured at the beginning of kindergarten and twice in each grade level to assess change over time. All analyses were stratified by sender. Overall, children who were persistently food insecure experienced a decline in learning compared to children who were persistently food secure. Children who transitioned from food insecure to food secure had a smaller increase in math skills compared to children from households who were persistently food secure. Children from households that transitioned from food secure to food insecure experienced a smaller increase in reading skills compared to those who transitioned to food secure and children from persistently food secure households.

Boxe and Boker (2006) also used and from the Tarly Childheed Leaguishand) by a same the relationable between Kosi investively and weight ratures. They used data that was collected at from time points from Kindowynen to grade 1; fall and spring of 1906/99 and 1d and spring of 1999-2000. There were an any differences in either RMM groupings. Fixed insecurity in the pringer (1999 was not predictive of or reversight at same or a high spring data (1999 was not predictive by a second collected ability monething in the pringer at al. (2004) and the nume databas and stated ability monething in the pringer at al. (2004) and the nume databas and insecurity. The number of ability area to increasing a state state was reasonable, theorem of ability was not predicted by monething was reasonable and and an environment factors predicated by monething was increasity. The number of ability was no princips according which for discovery. Childhee's chopy weight was not predicted by household field according that one environtion.

In summy, there have been it we cross-sectional lifegener proofs. Individuals from fixed insufficient located waves mere likely to report poor first hands, poor finicianal hands, restrictional active study, and poor sector support. Food insecure, an compared to food secure diabetise, wave goes likely to report enting the error dualty servings of finitia and vegatabates, having one more dialty to report and pois joing moderative poise active to an tert for goes hands. matinghations with life as good, and were more likely to report meet hands, meating addition, they were less likely to be former and near likely to be current and active. Chicken be endown. To your of goe were noticable in these envolves dualts.

studies. Birth to age 12 encompasses most of a child's development and is therefore a crucial time span to study how food insecurity affects development.

Duclines in learning in children from food insector bouseholds have been reported in longitudinal studies. Information on children reported in longitudinal studies have all been based on the same data with a limited age range (Lindergatten to grade 5). There is a need for more longitudinal studies that follow children from infancy to early authordo or explore terifects of food insecurity on development.

Control Variables

Gener: The distribution and impact of food insecutity are associated with gender. Froed insecutity is more common in sweems (classos, & Gernais, 2005; Tarasah, 2015) Cultor-Trages, Pryce, Myboolia, and Weitsmann (2006) found that although andret was not a significant predictor of food insecutity, molecute we more flash than frammes in antifier from sovere end hild food insecutity, world end. (The Share of the Share of the effects of food secutivy). Hony who were not all interested weight gain compared in presistent food secutivy. Hony who were food insecuted weight gain compared to presistent food secutivy. Hony who were food insecuter as kinkergattere experienced a garantee relation is used its compared food present with gains and that gains more globy. For grithy, munitioning to food insecutivy was associated with a greater whole its noist all allow interpret improves many abused with a greater more line in noist all allow interpret improves many double with a greater whole its noist all allow interpret improvement in exid allows come many bots.

Income. One obvious determinant of health that is related to food insecurity is income. As the adequacy of household income decreases, the likelihood that a household will rayer for his meaning harmanse (Anima, Olson, Frangilla, & Brefel, 2001; Ingers et al., 2008; Holis Canada, 2007; Makriyera, Canwes, & Warma, 2000; Low income boundwidds with maskars have the higher tanse of adult food incourse) (Cather-Taigge et al., 2008; In the 1999;1900 US National Population Handb Borrey, Silver and animators enription properties profession (post anomatory) (Cather, 2007; Canaitant with these absorbariations rendometary) (Cather Caro, 2009; Canaitant with these absorbariations rendometary) (Cather Caro, 2009; Cather and an adult and a second animators rendometary) (Cather Caro, 2009; Cather and Cather and Cather and Landbarre and Landbarre and Landbarre Def Cathera, 2005; Landbarred and Landbarre and Landbarre and predictions of food instearily and adults and 2002/2001 protect that the Normhold income, strength spaces, and accoursing problems in childhood were itt image predictions of food instearily and adults and 2002/2001 protect that the Catherania, 2005; Food instearily and a low measurements in families on Tapidyment Imazence or Wadren Composition.

Cases, Scans, Leaning, Bugle, and Weber (2001) foort data addatem from layer increase, focal instificient families, opent more times vacating television compared to addatem from higher lossens, flood afficient families, for and Hoort (2006), who compared to increase faod afficient families. Rece and Hoort (2006), who compared to increase faod afficient families are impressed from the first families and the start of the start of the start of the farst and the start of the start of the start of the start factor. COMP operated that facio linearceity and low increases well and sumstart with addition involving influencial effects of the start of the start factors increases from the start of the start of the start.

Other Demographic Variables. In the National Longitudinal Survey on Children and Youth, families headed by single mothers were eight times more likely to report their children were hungry as compared to those who were married (McIntvre et al., 2000). There have been other reports of increased food insecurity in single parent households (Che & Chen, 2001). As expected, food insecurity is also related to low levels of maternal education and maternal age (Dubois, 2006). In 2004, food insecurity was more prevalent among Canadian adults than children (Health Canada, 2007). It was also more prevalent in Aboriginal households, those renting, and households with children. Among households with children, the prevalence of food insecurity was higher among those with three or more children, and those with children under six years of age. In households without children, the prevalence of food insecurity was higher among single individuals compared with couples (Health Canada, 2007). Hanson, Sobal, and Frongillo (2007) found that never married, cohabiting, separated, and divorced men and women, all reported lower levels of food security as compared to those who were married. Divorced and separated men and women were most likely to report very low food security. Thus, there are a number of variables that predict food security status with income being one of the primary variables.

Behaviours That Affect Physical Health

Other factors that may contribute to food security stams are the behaviours of the individual. Behaviours that can affect physical health such as smoking, alcohol intake, the number of servings of fraits and vegetables per day, and IMI have been studied in dashis in relations food security stams. Froit in a vegetable time and IMI have also the state of the security states. been studied in children. Physical and sedentary activity levels in relation to food security status have only been investigated in children.

Bandarg, Heaht nama is affended by marking. Adults from food insufficient hunderholds were more likely to marker more eigenretice per day (Dixon et al., 2001) and per per pack per were (Action, Pina, J. Lee, 2004) and hard from food sufficient hunderholds. Ford inscerer individuals with diabetes (Osciented) et al., 2003) and per perceduates in food succers individuals with diabetes (Osciented) et al., 2003), finanding ware and food inscererity was more prevalent and succers in childrens. With de Tachera: 2009) and food inscererity was more prevalent and severe is children and adults in hunderholds with markers (Chilter Trägge et al. 2003). Thus, marking may contribute to poor hashit amang food inscerer individuals.

Alsolish The communition of radiately insorther important combinator to physical health and also been fixed and so the moscindor with fixed insecurity. In generari, shalls of all used how the reford intervent less fixely to also disculstor at ally brutis than there who were fixed acceare (Annuaer et al., 2008; Molityre et al., 2009). The same trend has been found in adults they some of the gam and solidor (Phone et al., 2001) and in disbetics angel [2] to 6+0⁺ (concretion 12, 2009).

Nutrition. Nutrition also contributes to health status. As feed insecurity increases, there is a significant decrease in the frequency of communiton of fruits and vegetables in women (Kendall, Olson, A. Frengillo, 1996; Transak, 2001), adults (Galifierd, Mahabir, & Rock, 2001), adolescents (Kirkpatrick & Tarmak, 2008), children (Homman & Herrits, 2003, Case et al., 2001), adolescents (Kirkpatrick & al., 2009). Dison et al. (2001) found that younger adults aged 20-59 from food insufficient families reported lower intakes of calcium and vitamine E than younger adults from food sufficient families. They also reported lower consumption of milk products, fivility/init juices, and vegetables. Other food insecure adults, aged 60-, had lower intakes of energy as measured by megapoides (MJ), vitamin 16-6, magnetism, ices, and rinc.

Food insecurity has been associated with decreased meat consumption (Kirkratrick & Tarasuk, 2008: Matheson, Varady, Varady, & Killen, 2002), and increased tortilla consumption in Latinos (Kaiser, Melgar-Quinonez, Lamp, Johns, Sutherlin, & Harwood, 2002), and decreased milk consumption in Latinos (Kaiser et al., 2002), as well as in Canadians (Kirkpatrick & Tarasuk, 2008). Food insecure Latino children aged 2 to 6 were less likely to receive the number of servings for each food group recommended by the USDA Food Guide Pyramid as compared to food secure children the same age (Kaiser et al., 2002). Food insecure Korean children (Oh & Hong, 1003) and Canadian adolescents (Kirkpatrick & Tarasuk, 2008) consumed a higher intake of calories compared to their food secure counterparts. Food insecure US children (Bowman & Harris, 2003) and youths (Widome, Neumark-Sztainer, Hannon, Haines, & Story, 2009) consumed a higher amount of fat compared to their food secure counterparts. Other investigators have found that US women from food insecure households who were overweight had poorer diet quality (Adams et al., 2003; Basiotis, 2003). In summary, it is likely that poor nutrition is a contributor to the poorer health that is experienced in food insecure children and adults.

Physical Activity/Sedentary Activity. There were not any significant differences in the number of times food insecure children ared 3-17 exercised each week compared to food secure children (Casev et al., 2001). There were no differences in recreational exercise habits (i.e., walking) in food insecure children compared to those who were food secure (Gulliford et al., 2006). Food insecure children were more likely to report that most of their free time was spent doing things that involved little physical effort and they were rated by their parents as being less active than other children the same age during structured activities, free time, and aerobic exercise (Rose & Bodor, 2006). Household food insecurity in diabetics aged 12-65+ was associated with physical inactivity (Gueciardi et al., 2009). The amount of sedentary activity each day can indirectly affect health status. Increased television viewing has been found in food insecure children aged 3 to 17 (Casey et al., 2001), aged 5-8 (Rose & Bodor, 2006), and in preschool children living in single parent households (Bowman & Harris, 2003). Thus, decreased physical activity and increased sedentary activity may contribute to the poorer physical health in food insecure children.

Measured and Self Reported IME, Body Manu Sheler. (RMI) is calculated by dividing wight in Kilagrams by height an inters sparsed (kg/wr). Some researcher bus used IME calculated from self-reported height and weight, have with Weit solatands from measured height and weight, have, Brah, and Netlon (2009) found that when self-reported height and weight data were used). RMI was significantly higher among field inscores respondents that mong field accure respondents. In territors, where monous height and weight data were used, RMI were subjection efficiences in the monous height and weight appreciation. security status overall. However, female respondents classified as food insecure with mild hanger were at greater risk of obesity than were food secure female respondents when measured height and weight were used. Thus, it appears prudent to use measured BML

The results obtained in indice relevant to the relationship between flood interceity and MR with adults and adultate have been incominent, with more instructionary of the MR MR in practice that we are ford intercess. The method of the MR intercess fload and expected differences in RMM. Soft report and memore data have yielded difference results. There have a disherent differences from 0 for the effects of fload interceity on RMI in byoy and gifts and men and somen. A memory the relation of the RMR interceity of the RMI is structured and as uses for helded.

Insert Table 1 about here

In summer, behavior that have an adverse affect on builts much as moding and failing to commune enough fastis and sequestiables are more ememons in food inscence papels. On the electronal, food inscence region, the molecular and the electronal particular and the electronal pa

Food Security and Physical Health Outcomes

It is important to know the effects of food insecurity on the physical health of the food insecure individual. Most researchers have investigated the effects of food insecurity on direct physical health outcomes such as high blood pressure, and heart disease in adults. A few researchers have focused on young children and physical aliments such as odds, and stormatheries.

Durent Hathik Manuers, Is non instances, food searchy hus here an avoided with our searces of whether Alamo et al. (2017) interventional hashes and prechond and school age children in the UK. Food imatificient children were significantly more likely to have power hashin and to experison oner frequent immischables and installashes the info off antificient children as influent influence influenc

Vommis and Taranak (2000) investigated bounded for isoufficiency and bealth contomes in those aged 12 to 71+. They found that individuals from food insufficient boundeds repeated possible inhalts, poor functional bealthy, netroited activity, and multiple devotic conditions compared to individuals from food sufficient boundedda. Individuals in food insufficient boundedda were also more likely to repeat bear thereas. Individuals in food insufficient boundedda were also more likely to repeat bear disease. Individuals in food insufficient boundedda were also more likely to repeat bear disease. Individuals in food insufficient boundedda were also more likely to repeat beard therease. Stem, Gowen, Rubbins, Simpson, Currell, and Bogle (2004) found that adults aged 13 to 65-16 food insecure households accord lower on the physical scale of the Stort Form Health Stravey compression before from 6 software schedulski. Gardeness and Stecker (2009) reported that children aged 2-19 in food insecure households were more likely to be in poor health an indicated by their weight status. Food insecure individuals with diabetes were more likely to have suffered from a storke compared to food secure indicated and the store of the store of the store of the store of the store indicated status diabetes (Securitie et al., 2009).

Children agol 63 years in food inscures households had a higher mushe of bunqiai adhisisina scanagend 5 shiften from food severe households. This distribution is a strain of the severe households. This ethnicity, addr 3 dayner attendance, comprojer vi age, employment and mutil attance. (Kock, Furth, Horstein, Black, Carey, Chin, Moyers, Zahlfver, Kailidy, Levenson, Horen, & Nosd, 2004. The receipt of food anyan attenued the association between food innecerny and finispone health in thibetion (Cock, Furth, Horenson, Naturi, Horens, Black, Berkewise, Carey, Meyers, Chin, & Chillma, 2005). Food insceres two subschlo were more likely in include a chemicality if parties. J. entire aparting multiple visits to hubit one movelane, at calid visits a datability (Hater, Korkit, 2006). Includeals in dominance many difference on a overlaph patient (Sacciauli et al., 2009). Thus, it aparents that hous hears and anality distance and a scaling experience poorer physical health. Verserviced Health. There have not been many studies in which the relationship between food accurity and perceived health was described but the results reported are constituted. Tool Interesting in susceitated with perceived health among mothers (Stefart, Heflin, Cenceran, & Williams, 2001), adults aged 18 to 64 + (Staff et al., 2004), children and adults aged 12 to 71 + (Voscrist & Tanzak, 2003), and in diabetics aged 12 to 64 - (Voscrist ef al., 2009).

Food Security and Mental Health

Research reports on flood innecurity and mental health outcomes have usually contained information about adult women. There is little, if any research on flood insecurity and men and either perceived mental health or preceived stress. A few researchers have investigated flood security and actual stress levels in adults.

Note-E-matinated Outcomes. Seem assist-endoted factors appear to be associated with only accessively. And appeared and appeared a psychologist, have been suspended from school, and have difficulty getting along with other children.

Infanta and soldlers in food incourse boundshidt were found to be more at rich for developmental dultys compared to children in food secure boundshidt (1000-kooks), data, Caray, C., Gui, C., Guin, Henne, Lewsson, Mayrer & Frank, 2008). Food incourse dultane learned dower than food secure shiften on we the kholergatera user (Winki & Dennison, 2003). Josi et al. (2009) added that learning from simely and hence was also een iddines from periodic molic discurses households. Food inscourse children under age 18 were more likely a hore a recently divered parent, suffer from a learning dushibity (Basien et al., 2005), and lower onguine performance than food secure children et al., 2005).

Other (1999) investigant batch outcomes associated with food insecutiny and hunger in children. She found that in low-inscore school-age children in grades 1-5, hunger was associated informer portsociated functioning an measure by the Politicit Symptem Checklist (PSC), a parent completed questionnaire, and both the risk of hunger and hunger pict were both associated with power PSC scores after controlling for elactionic, they hunger screened or PSC scores after controlling for incomes.

Food insufficiency and depression are positively associated in low income women after controlling for factors known to increase the risk of depression (Hellin, Stefert, & Williams, 2005; Laraia, Siega-Riz, Gunderson, & Dole, 2006; Weinreb, Wehler, Perloff, Scott, Haumer, Sager, & Gunderson, 2020; Laraia et al. (2006) also reported that after controlling for fincome, rance, and aree preserviced attess and truit attactives were positively associated with food insecurity while reflectences was negatively associated with household food insecurity, Madhen who report food insecurity with hunger were more likely to uniffer from your portunation; stress alsociated (whereh et al., 2020; angior depression and distress (Elso et al., 2009; Halley & Puill, 2009; Sciffer et al., 2001; Varentis & Tazanki, 2000; and efferts a major depressive spisofor egenerational analysis, depression (Madhen, Puilley, & Onc.), 2000; compared thoses who serve food secore:

Food insecutivy was associated with optimum of depression, univery and poortimumit entries Alfreed and an end weeks and seconding for confounding variable (bladicy, Tappa, Teenma, Cawan, Asefa, & Gains, 2006). Adams, Cliona, and Pringillo (2002) found that food inatificiant addressmit sequences and an entries of the experimented approving, barged of adms, client with a entries that with that food sufficient addressens. Dathetics appl 12 to 51⁺ from food inserved households reported mesonid subsects, lower IE sufficients, poorer previous meson households reported mesonid subsects, lower IE sufficiency, poorer previous meson households reported mesonid and food source addresses (Coupandi et al., 2004).

In summary, find insecurity in associated with poerer nocio-emotional and copatitive enteroms in children degite their incomes. Food insecure women are more likely to repert depression, attreas and anxiety than food secure women, while food innecure adults are more likely to report depression, arxiety and post-traumatic stress compared to food secures adults.

Possible Moderators of Mental Health. Vozoris and Tarasuk (2003) reported that individuals from food insufficient households had poor social support as measured by having someone to confide in, count on, to give them advice, and to make them feel Ived compared at these from foot affection boundeds. Itality, Madee, and Fishehert (2007) fixed instrumental social support as manured by the ability to berrary more of foot, wan engineery associated with their fibed inscently among two enthic groups in real Taxania. However, Marco and Thorburn (2009) reported to evidence of an association between social support and fibed inscently among Toropa realisms, near social social support and inscent among among Toropa realisms, real weaken the used import and in a molecular between inscent and fibed uncertainty, regardless of the maxime of social support and. They investigated community level social support subshit included table community instances and regardization methership as well as initiant entropy end uncertow support.

One proming measure of social reports, a sous of community belonging, to use out in histoware of theories' (2009 mins), their default is the source of the community belonging afficial both mential and physical health mates. More propile what reported a very remove or numewhat measures of community belonging also reported works sense of community belonging to append the three physical both works sense of community belonging to (2016db, 2008), Deceme sense are following in a growning version of a version of the source of the promising version of community belonging to a reserve of the source of the

Expected Findings

In the present study, a national database containing lifespun information was used to explore the effects of food security on physical and mernal health across gender and income and to see how food security stans changes with age. There is little information about the interaction of income, or gender with food security in affecting the outcomes of a large number of dependent variables. If these variables produced additive effects, then it would be an initiate for researchers to focus on low income women and exclude the remainder of the population. In order to explore this possibility, the effects of food security, gender, and income on eighteen different measures of physical and mental health were examined using cross-sectional lifepan data.

Bused on the literature vectors, a mather of results are expected, a positive searchink between field security with previously and physical batch in adults, a sequire sanctainto between field security and high blood personse, heard fittess and dathets an well as derivative physical and metal fittesses. Prevalence of muchangi to represent between final and expection physical physical and metal security and the lower's field security and heard security in expected in children and adults. The relationship between field as earling observative physical and structures with ages and the dependent measures used. Al younger ages field security that we a kingher BDB final field secure childrense yactivity, part bysical activity, and have a kingher BDB final final secure childrense yactivity was expected to be regaritively related to their shocksest and advice measured and.

Many investigators report power mental hashin is women who are food insecure but the relationship between perceived mental hashin biress and fixed insecurity is worksown. If perceived mental hashin alter perceived means are correlated with actual mental health these a positive association between field security and perceived mental hashin is expected as a sengative association between field security and self-perceived stres.

Method

Participants

There were 55.000 households obsciend to participate in the COTS (Cycle 2.2). Of al faces 33.727 responded, a household level response rate of 84.4%. One proton tions can household be usedened to participate the normy, as shall of 15.5107 participated, a person-level response rate of 90.7%. The combined response rate was 75.5% forwerers, only 63.2% of these individuals amoved all the questions (N+22247). The data of this compliant group, comining of 53.1% formales, was used in the present study.

Data Collection Method

Data Collection. The CCHS (Cycle 2.2) questionnaire was administered by a Statistics Canada employee using a computer-assisted interviewing (CAI) application which is an interview technique where premos is interviewed face-bace with the use of comparies: This colorisofue part in Jamury 2004 and was completed over 12 concentrier months. Only one member of each household was selected an teprimary participant in the array. Some participants neering the site terms of the premotion of the array. Some participants neering the site terms of the site of the continuation of two comparisons the "24-box distances and the "general nearmatch terms of the site of the match of the site of the spectra method of the site of the sit

Minimizing non-response. Prior to initial contact, letters were mailed from Statistics Canada to each household explaining the importance of the survey and giving examples of how the data collection would be used. A national response rate of 76.5% was achieved.

Special circumstance during data collection. In prior cycles of the survey, selfreported information on respondent's weight and height were collected. Since people do not have a tendency to report this information accurately, the interviewers measured concerning respondents' weight and height. For those refusing to be measured, a selfreport method was used.

Interviewing children and youth. Cycle 2.2 is the first CCHS cycle that included children younger than 12 years of age. When interviewing youth (12-17), parents or guardians were provided with an introductory letter explaining the purpose of collecting information from youth and the list of topics to be covered during the survey. Verbal permission was obtained from the parent guardian to interview the selected youth without the parent present present. For children age 6-11, both parent and child were at the interview and the child surveef the questions with the parent's quadance.

Weighting, A survey weight way aipvins used persons indead in the final surgers. This weight creations is to mean there of persons in the entire prototiants for are represented by the respondent. For example, in a simple random 24's sample, and person in the sample represents 50 people in the population. The weighting papers in a trained on the sample random 24's sample, and a sample random 24's multiple of people who mucke daily was to be estimated. It is done by selecting the weights means of the sample random 24's sample and the sample of people who mucke daily was to be estimated, it is done by selecting the weights means of the sample sample of the sample sample sample sample sample sample sample weights means of the sample sampl

Suppression of confidential information. The public-use microdata file includes all respondents but not all of the variables. Some of the variables were removed, capped, or regrouped to protect confidentiality of respondents.

Modules

Socio-Demographic Module. This module included questions about immigrant status, country of birth, ethnic origin, age, gender, martial status, language, and school or university attendance and was asked of all participants. Gender was categorized as 1
(male) or 2 (female). As originally done in the database, age was grouped into 16 categories starting with those under 1 and ending with those 71+. The age ranges in each category appear in Table 2.

Insert Table 2 about here

Income Module. This module included a series of questions about personal and household income. These questions were asked to a knowledgeable member of the household. Income was originally classified into five categories by number of individuals. in household as well as the total income: lowest income (<\$10,000 if 1 to 4 people, <\$15,000 if >/5 people), lower middle income (\$10,000 to \$14,999 if 1 or 2 people, \$10, 000 to \$19,999 if 3 or 4 people, \$15,000 to \$29,999 if >/ 5 people), middle income (\$15,000 to \$29,999 if 1 or 2 nearly, \$20,000 to \$39,999 if 3 or 4 people, \$30,000 to \$59,999 if >/5 neonle), unner middle (\$30,000 to \$59,999 if 1 or 2 people, \$40,000 to \$79,999 if 3 or 4 people, \$60,000 to \$79,999 if >/5 people) and highest (>/\$60,000 if 1 or 2 people, >/\$80,000 if >/3 people). In the present study, the first two categories of income were collarsed into one and named low income because there were not many people in the lowest income category. The last two income categories were collapsed into one and named middle high income due to a low number of food insecure people in the highest income category. The middle income category was not changed. Thus, there were three categories of income used in the present study; 1 (low income), 2 (middle income) and 3 (middle high income).

For determiny Monthe, The USDA fixed security model or wand minimized or the howeledgather emerge of all howeledgats. The model of the label operations along the fixed situation is each bounded) in the previous 12 munitum and sylided four categories; 0 (field secure); 11 fixed lineaces without pumpy); 21 fixed lineaces with moderate houses all ylood lineaces with moderate targets; 21 discusses any situation ware collapsed lineaces with moderate rarener hanges. Thus, two categories of that wave fixed lineaces with moderate rarener hanges. Thus, two categories of sources with wave research how the range 22 fixed lineaces and provide security ware studies the moderate rarener hanges. Thus, two categories models with wave should have research hanges. The three satisfarties of fixed with wave should have research hanges. The three satisfarties of fixed with wave should have research hanges. The three satisfarties of fixed with wave should have research hanges. The three satisfarties of fixed with wave should have research hanges. The three satisfarties of fixed with wave hand have research hanges. The three satisfarties of fixed with wave hand have research hanges. The three satisfarties of fixed handlineaces with hanges and the rate of the distances of the fixed with wave hand hand have research hanges. The three satisfarties of fixed handlineaces with hanges and the rate of the distances of the fixed handlineaces with handlineace and the rate of the distances of the fixed handlineaces with handlineace and the rate of the distances of the fixed handlineaces and handlineaces and the rate of the distances of the fixed handlineaces and handlineaces and the distances and the distances of the distances

Alcohol Module: Thin module included questions about the frequency and amount of alcohol consumption in the previous 12 months. They also were taked to those older than 12. Frequency of alcohol communition was classified into seven provel; 1 (loss than once a month), 2 (once a month), 3 (two or three times a month), 4 (once per work) 5 for our three times a weak(). 6 (for to its or its most as weak), and 7 or very day). Fruit and Vegetable Consumption Module. Information about the consumption of juice, fruit, and vegetables was collected for info/similar aged 6 months and older. It was coded into three groups: 1 (less than five servings per day), 2 (5 to 10 servings per day), and 3 (most han 10 servings per day).

Physical Activities Module. The physical activities module contained questions about leisure time activities for those aged 12+. It was used to calculate the physical activity index and classified as: 1 (active), 2 (moderate), or 3 (inactive).

Sedentary Activities Module. The sedentary activities module contained question about how many hours per week were spent sitting at a computer, playing, videogames, watching television, and reading for leisure in youth aged 12 to 17. Categories manged from less than 5 hours (16).

Chernetic Catalities Models, This models was used to embed information above the model hordination and factores which induces of verse expected to lard 6 models or tone, diagonal by a hashli professional. All quaritons ware promoted to propel apal 12 and up with the exception of the quariton about anospensis which was added to three provided the distribution agade 5.12, present modifies with the quaritonics, while they provided the distribution of the dilabest space profession of the distribution included sheather are not the individual appendiced cancer, high blood presents, fabries included sheather are not the individual appendiced cancer, high blood presents, fabries models of the dimension of a consolid anospects. All their dancess were grouped into "where may employed or mount all theses". Assuress were categories a 1 greet or 2 fro:

Measured Height and Weight Module. Height and weight were measured for those who gave consent. Self report data were obtained for the rest of the participants. Measured or self reported BMI was calculated from the height and weight data (kg/m²) for participants are 2 and up and categorized according to are. Self report BMI data were not used in this study. For children under 18 years of aze, BMI was classified into three categories using the US Centre for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) child growth charts. These charts allow a comparison of a child's height and weight to other children of the same age, gender, and ethnicity by displaying a series of percentile curves that illustrate the distribution of body measurements in children from birth to age 18 (National Centre for Health Statistics, 2000). A child was considered overweight or obese using Cole, Bellizzi, Flegal, & Dietz's (2000) definitions of overweight (BMI285th percentile for any and cender) and chesity (BMD-95th percentile for any and cender). Any child with a BMI <85th percentile was classified as neither overweight nor obese. Adults 18 years and older were classified into four categories: underweight (BMI<20), normal weight (20<BMI<25), overweight (BMI >25), and obese (BMI >30). The BMI classifications have recently changed in Canada but did not affect the classifications in the present study.

General Health Module: The physical health component of this module contained a question about how one prereview his or health. Only children and adults older than 12 years answered this question. Prerevied health was coded in five categories as assessed by the question, "In general would you say your health lis: 1 (excellent), 2 (very supp.6), 3 (quest), 4 (this, ver 5 (post))²

The mental health component of this module contained five questions about perceived mental health, perceived stress, satisfaction with life, and sense of belonging to community. People aged 12 and older were asked those questions except for the question about stress. Perceived mental health was coded into five categories as assessed by the question. "In general, would you say your mental health is: 1 (excellent), 2 (very good), 3 (good), 4 (fair), or 5 (poor)?" Self-perceived stress was coded into five categories as assessed by the question, "Thinking about the amount of stress in your life, would you say that most days are: 1 (not at all stressful), 2 (not very stressful), 3 (a bit stressful), 4 (quite a bit stressful) or 5 (extremely stressful)?" This question was asked only to participants 15 years of age and older. Satisfaction with life was coded into five categories as assessed by the question. "How satisfied are you with your life in general: 1 (very satisfied), 2 (satisfied), 3 (neither satisfied nor dissatisfied), 4 (dissatisfied), or 5 (very dissatisfied)?" Sense of belonging to community was coded into four categories as assessed by the question, "How would you describe your sense of belonging to your local community: 1 (very strong), 2 (somewhat strong), 3 (somewhat weak), or 4 (very weak)?*

Results and Discussion

The CCIB was a Canadian nationally representative study in which sample weights were provided. Weighted data were usage in all makyses and appear in all Tables. The statistical package TSSS was used to analyze the data. With the exception of the demographic data analyzed according to the category of interest using this squared tests of independence, the remaining demonstrative travelshows are cased as a low of the same levels diselence.

29

In Table 2. Detus simular remains in the data were scheered at two or more adjacent age improved, the data were colleged or where age and an easilyach, licence, genden and food security served as either predictors or independent variables is all analyses with the exception of the dis-square analysis of the demonspheric data. Context and allocons were then been because of the discourge relationsity with the descenty. Proceeds the data, blood pressure, other long users physical or mental illense, somach or instantial disorders, baser disease, dialetese, cancer, lowed disorders, strateging and the data. The discourge data was also allow and provide the second data and disorders are setting but here the analysis. The method presses of the setting strate physical or metage schedules and the data and provide strates, unifications with life, and stores of bulonging nerved as other predicted or separation trained, physical or metage strates and the set of the predicted or separation trained, physical or metage strates and the set of the predicted or separation trained, physical or metage strates and the set of the predicted or separation trained, physical or metage strates and the set of the predicted or separation trained, physical or metage strates and the set of the predicted or separation trained, physical or metage strates and the predicted or separation trained physical or set of the physical ph

Demographic Data.

Age, A can be seen in Table 2, the rate of fload inneurity were across asyst. (150 - 100 K, g - (100 K)). The brick to 14 groups command 17 \times 50 of the turb population. 22.5% of the fload inneurity population in the last a fload inneurity run of (13.1%. The turb 10 \times 20 group accounted 15 \times 50 of the turb population. (14.0% of the last a fload inneurity run of (14.1%, h is likely that population more of the distance in the 19 \times 90 group accounted 15 \times 50 of the turb population. The distance is the last a fload inneurity run of (14.1%, h is likely that popula bear and raise most of their distance in the 19 \times 90 group accounted 15 \times 50 of the turb population. The distance is the last a fload inneurity run of (14.1%, h is likely that popule bear and raise most of their distance in the 19 \times 90 group accounted 15 \times 50 m fload and the foot inneurity in a run relative with hand a fload in the distance in the 19 \times 90 groups and 10 m fload the fload inneurity in presents and their childhows, and married parents and their childhows ender accounts fload fload fload inneurity run of 14.1% has the presents and childhows ender account population. Acc and be expected to law similative fload flo seen in Tables 3 and 4, single parents and their children had similar rates of food insecurity (average 18.5%) as did married parents and their children (average 8.8%), consistent with the hypothesis.

As also displayed in Tables 2 and 4, single promen living with children had 2 YU lower rate of food inscensity that their children. In ensuits, parents living with a power and children had 2 YU shiper rate of food inscensity that promote the their children. It may be that some single parents are foreing themselves in terms of food access. On the other hand, marched paroption with perturbing their children from some of the effective of food memory. The meloginy the dual sharple was marked lower Tables 2 and a marked people experiments higher terets of food inscentity than their children which might account for the higher rate of food inscentity in the 1% with compared to birth to 14 sure other.

Insert Tables 3, 4 and 5 about here

The finding that single parents do not report to protot the whileher form food source/up does not support the dation of Multiver et al. (2000). They found has the income ringle moders reported protocing that while the data of the second suggested that these findings may be doe to reporting bias. In their which, mothers were sould easily about their children's experiences of suggest. In contrast, in the CCUS survey and here, food sourcely status was neptoned by an adult who was asked bar using of queetions about the child. Perhaps this while range of queetions reduced or eliminated reserveing bias. The rate of food insecurity was lower at the ages of 11 to 60 compared to ages 10 to 40. There are several reasons that might explain why the rate of food insecurity append. Addin aged 11 to 60 mJ why were meases to insome beause of adary increases, delt reduction associated with mortgage and madent loans retirement, and their thildres largely about. These was a monotonic decline in food insecurity after at age 40 thildres largely about. These was a monotonic decline in food insecurity after at age 40 the 60 cm monotonic and a second second second second second second second menting to the success of the Canadian Pension Plannal Canadian of an age security.

There are three age mays the much finder comment, finding, H & H By age-add and P Y are not A lithing that high our for foot instructive (the or Table 2) resurrance to the hypothesis that they would be protocold from food insecurity by their parents. The lithing of each structure of the contrast of the three more exclusion and more than molecure who be routed out be muricel, older, and these more exclusions and more than molecure who have note to be muricel, older, and these more exclusions and more them molecures, it may be that infanta are not being broading by the grounger, single, but contrast, but isomer processing broading broading by the grounger, single, but the molecule be been infanta in each being broading by the grounger, single, but the molecule be been infanta in each being broading by the grounger, single, but the molecule be been infanta in the single are financing by the grounger, the single broading broadin

Children agol 14 to 18 were more likely to be food secure than children of other ages. Teenagers may be spending more time away from their families at finish a bases and totahaning tool dawa. They may also be sworting and earning used of their own money that permits independent access to food. Seniors agol 71 + bad the lowest rate of food insecurity in the tutal population. Prior research does indicate that seniors agol 60 e are more likely to be food incorect compensation to seniors and 84 and 460 Masia to Wheels Association of America Foundation, 2008). Some seniors aged 71+ may have been institutionalized and always fed. The low rate of food Insecurity in seniors may be due to higher mortality rate of food insecure seniors. Why older seniors living at home appear to be more successful in obtaining food than other individuals at different ages merils funder investigation.

Likey arrangement, Achows in Table 3, alabien brieg with one point expressed a higher location of the off-months of the address lines with the parents, $\omega^{(1)}$ =151.52, ρ < 5001. Adds food inscurity stands as a function of living manymoit in aboves in Table 4. Single parents living with children expressions of the higher days of the functionary, $\omega^{(1)} = 202.02$, ω (00). Mixeding poinds also near that off of inscurity compared to others, a finding that is often documentia in the literature (Mathers et al. 2000). Holds (Candida, 2007). Furthermore, there who near marked use (Mathers had 4.5 %) higher food inscurity most hank to be view (in adjust the spots). The Mahar had a spot in the second of the adds population. It is possible that marked popula here accesses to be inconcess and have deviced ways to successfully them derive evalues.

Adduts who were unstatched living alone had a lower rate of food insecutity compared to those unstatched living with others. Unstatched single people fiving with deem, isoliding theory into with our own others, network the highest rate of Food insecutivy. People in this living arrangement probably share their income with others in the household. Thins, there should be improved social assistance programs and shild benefits for single meets.

33

More lastices. Table 35 displays adult fixed incoursing us an intension of married stanta, $q^{2}(x) = 1445.5$, $p^{-} = 0.011$. There are two estapprises of married papels in Table 4 share callpage and Table 5. Thus, it is not requiring that married papels in Table 4 the lowest rate of food inaccurity in Table 4.5. Shaple papels who had have the two means that of farmeness in the prevalence of food inaccurity in the stark the trace. These were listed differences in the prevalence of food inaccurity in the stark the trace these married or who were not fibre the stark to expend on the higher entra. There were listed differences in these who were indexed, supmatich, or diversed. However, the how the table the stark to expend the stark to expend the stark the stark to be use we table as paper, prohyde have ne widewed gave parts in identificant, separated or diversed papels more there were indexed, the instruments for mark to here we that no expenses.

These findings are consistent with the data reported by Che and Chen (2001), Health Cauda (2007), and McHayne et al. (2000), who also found that field inscentity is highest among single people. However, Hamon et al. (2007) proper data inconsistent with these findings. They found that divenced and separated men and women were more likely to report their higmory that night people. The reason for that discrepancy is not apprent.

Gender: In children 18 years of age and younger, males (12.9%) had a higher rate of food innecentry than did females (11.4%), μ^{2} (1) – 4.68, p < 0.05. In contrast, adult females (10.4%) abad a higher rate of food innecentry that did adult males (0.1%), μ^{2} (1) =10.73, p < 0.005. Given that these differences are small and not sign, Is seems constructedurity to include needs from one senders in food security studies. Insert Table 6 about here

In some A. 6 displayed in Table 7, the struct of food inservity decreased an income increased, q^{2} ($s^{2} - 2019$, $R_{c} = 0.011$. The low income group continuous only 15% of the theory of the population bet 42 -254 food food increases property was advantatially lower in middle income people. The middle high income group contributed 53.1% of the total population and a substantial 20% of the food inserver pupation. The struct hough only 3.5% of these people water food inneres:

Insert Table 7 about here

Extension: In Table 1 the star of food insectivity appear are a function of the chandra level of a data, and $25^{+}, z^{+}(2) > 1.0$, p < 0.001. Most propel compto their double data and $25^{+}, z^{+}(2) > 1.0$, p < 0.001. Most propel compto their double data and p < 0.001. The data are and p < 0.001 and p < 0.001. The data are and p < 0.001 are an education does, people when graduated from prot-secondary scheol very level likely to be fixed insecute Powerheless, post-secondary graduation constituted 41.0% of the fixed insecute papalation.

Those who attended post-secondary school but did not graduate reported the highest food insecurity rate. It may be that people who invest in post-secondary education without analuation have student loans that they cannot afford to pay back without access to higher paying jobs. Thus, there should be more opportunities for interest relief of student loans and more affordable repayment plans.

Interestingly, those who graduated from high school reported a tilphtly higher food insecurity rate than those who did not. Thus, there is no evidence that having a high school diphtun helps people access flood unless they complete a post-secondary degree. The finding is inconsistent with the emphasis placed on competing high school foundation utlene utenties a post-secondary deduction is parroad and completed.

Insert Table 8 about here

Statistical Analyses

Memore IIMT was the only common variable caunded and was analyzed using analysis of variance and linear negression. All remaining dependent variables were capieral including the qualitative assessments of MM. The catagariant variabiles were analysis to maining regression, Tora variabiles were used in the mainlysis) and lines, linguistic, are maining regression. Tora variabiles were used in the mainlysis (mainty frequency and procession) and the strength of the strength of variables were and to the sacety were the independent variabiles in the analysis of variance and produces variables in all regression majors with the dependent variabiles are regression was and the sacety of the strength variables branch and the same results are strength variables branch or once categories. Legisfic regression using varias was with the low probability variables having two categories. Legisfic regression using varias was the the mer workshow the main type of the same variables. The strength variables have the main type of the same variable and the major strength variables. The strength variables have the major variables have having two categories (the distingent and yielded the tame results the malify worked the strength variables). were andryzed using simple linear argumstim. Gender, skoome, and food security were used as predictors in the simple regression models and he trow and the relevant to the second second second second second second second second second turns ded not yield any additional information of interest, so only the simple models are reported. When the data were consistent over a block of eggs, may be analysis on the data collapsed across these ages are reported. Blocks are barries and target and many target of the second second second second second second second second target of the second second second second second second second second the experiment-wise error rate. Similarly, all the important data is other reported in the text or papera in tables. However, some of the naturation is not included to improve entire and second second second second second second in the text or papera in tables. However, some of the naturation is not included to improve entire and second s

Behaviours That Affect Physical Health and its Relation to Food Security

date, no satisfactory explanation for the association has been offered. There should be greater emphasis by the government on anti-smoking campaigns aimed to reduce the amount of money spent on cigarettes.

Insert Table 9 about here

Programming of Alabeda Uar for administration perpicip hereinverse appear 31 to 27 seems more likely to report darking teem harm more per month, and 2 to 3 times per month, and 10 likely to report dividing teem harm more per month, and 2 to 3 times, $d^{(0)}$ 958.1, $\mu = 0.001$, maintening frequency analysis, $\ell = 7, 2000$, -10.23, $\mu = 0.001$, -0.001, maintening frequency analysis, $\ell = 7, 2000$, -10.23, $\mu = 0.001$, more $\ell = 10^{-1}$, -0.001, maintening terms with more like an appearing more frequency of alaseba uses (see Table A3 In Appendix A). However, the described 13 to 71 + years adaptation was obtained and Heresto of Inneuron. Using US samples, Moltspee 4 (2000), Dioor on et 2000, and Annower et al. 2000 report using information 4 (2000), Dioor on et 2000, and Annower et al. 2000 report using information 4 (2000), Dioor on et 2000, and Annower et al. 2000 report using information 4 (2000), Dioor on et 2000, and Annower et al. 2000 report using information 4 (2000). Dioor on et 2000, and Annower et al. 2000 report using information 4 (2000). Dioor on et 2000, and Annower et al. 2000 report using information 4 (2000). Dioor on et 2000, and Annower et al. 2000 report using information 4 (2000). Dioor on et 2000, and Annower et al. 2000 report using information et al. 2000 report using information 4 (2000). Dioor on et 2000, and Annower et al. 2000 report using information 4 (2000). Dioor of a constraints dis informers the food strature treatment and an origin and annower ad. 2000 report to the food strature treatment and an origin and the food strature treatment and the strature of the adaption of the a

Insert Table 10 about here

Fruit and Vegetable Intake. Food insecure children under age 9 did not differ from food secure children the same are in terms of their fruit and vegetable intake (x² (2)

= 5.82, p < 0.055), multiway frequency analysis. However, they were less likely to report enting less than 5 servings of fruits and vegetables per day (57.7% verses 81.2%) compared to food insecure children above age 9. Similarly, food secure children under age 9 were also less likely to report eating less than 5 servings of fruits and veretables per day (52% verses 68.9%) compared to food secure children above age 9. In contrast, food insecure as compared to food secure people above the ages of 9 are more likely to report eating less than five servings of fruits and vegetables per day (81.2% verses 68.9%), less likely to report eating 5 to 10 servings per day (17.9% verses 29.8%), and less likely to report eating more than ten servings per day (0.9% verses 1.3%), $r^{2}(2) =$ 95.81, p < 0.001, multiway frequency analysis. There was one higher order interaction: income similicantly interacted with fixed security and fruit and vegetable intake $x^2(4) =$ 19.63. n < 0.001. However, the described nattern was maintained at all income levels (see Table A4 in Appendix A). Furthermore, a similar pattern has been obtained in Canadian (Tarasuk, 2001; Kirkpatrick & Tarasuk, 2008, Gucciardi et al., 2009), US (Kendall et al., 1996: Casey et al. 2001: Divon et al. 2001: Gulliford et al. 2003: Bowman & Harris 2003) and Mexican populations (Kaiser et al., 2002; Kaiser, Melgar-Ouinonez, Townsend, Nicholson, Fuii, Martin, & Lamp, 2003).

Thus, it appears that health care professionals are doing a good job educating parents on the importance of first own food, they choose least finite and vegetables. It may be that the perception that firsts and vegetables do not satisfy hunger and are not well liked which account for why these foods are under commende by food inscuree people over the age of 9. This distary choice may adversely affect their health given that reduced fruit and vegetable intuke increases the risk of various conditions such as howed cancer, high blood pressure, and osteoporosis (Lanham-New, 2006). Therefore, there needs to be more obtaction on the importance of choosing health (Fod in elementary and high schools.

Psysted Articly Index, Queriess were aded about the muther of time people convenies proves in those aged 12 and robust. Food security stams did not differ by poslical activity views care and a 25 sto. 51 cm sources reports that ages were a strice (16.9%) errors 11%), $z^{i} = 51.5$, $z^{i} < 50.01$. Similarly, Charcland et al. (2009) found, using a population that was muching 4 to 25.5, food insecure diabeties were less physically active compared to food secure diabeties. In general, the present findings are constant with our experiment with a monociation between physical activity and field molecular was not exhanged in children (2may et al., 2001) er in adulty (children's et al., 2006). Row and Bolie (2000) reported, in exception to thig mentilation, that food insecure produced diabative must area areas at physica present.

Solution: Achieve Quarking were also all about the number all-num-spectry per series expand in understary antitistic only to yourkin agod 12 to 13. Solutions you'rity war the only numaric examinabilities from the same parameters of performance of theorems and food security are use the senies in Table 11, $Q_2^{-1}(3) = 9.800$, $A_{\rm eff}$ chichen that were for down and the intervent (All-theorem and the other merics of the senies of the same and the security different theorem and set merics of the security of the security performance of the security meric that $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ merics of the security and the security different terms of the security merics and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ merics that $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ and $P_{\rm eff}$ a 20 hours per week engaged in sedentary activity. Why middle and middle-high income food insecure children spent substantially more time engaged in sedentary activity compared to the rest of the population is unclear.

Insert Table 11 about here

Boby Mos Leder. The quantitative and qualitative 10M dilutation tar for any proprings are summarized in Tables 12 and 13. There was a lendersy for feed successes dilutions to here providely an enderstand of the fold success dilution is a lenger matter (DM and a develop second) and the fold success dilution is a lenger matter (DM and a develop second) and the fold success dilution is a lenger mathematical significant. Similer differences were lenger an aniantically significant in the 14 so 49 user end groundy (matthirt) effects p = 0.001, p =

Thus, it appears that BMI is affected by age and food security. In order to further document this possibility, the adult data were re-examined. As shown in Table 12, BMI is fairly constant in food insecure people above age 18 while mean BMI increases in the comparable food secure group (age by bood security interaction, $F_{\rm c}(2001)$ = 92.55, ρ = 0.001 analysis of variance, the three adult age grouping). The trends are more strating in the quaditative dial (see Tele11). The presenting of locol inscerse adults in each of the four IMM enterprise in failly constant across the three adult age groupings. On the other hand, there is a marked docrase in the presenting of food secure adults in the semanticategory and corresponding inscreases in the overweight and object enterprises are some grouping frequency analysis, the three adult age groupings, $O_{\rm C}$ to 20.82, $P_{\rm c}$ = 0.001, multivage frequency analysis, the three adult age groupings). The reason why IMM remains relatively stable in the food inscrease population across the adult yeas, while the odd yeas, and also yeas, while the

Insert Tables 12 and 13 about here

In Table 1, the outcomes obtained in IMM research with children and address qualitative measured data are summarized. As seen in this table, most of the researcheer canciload data using maricipants show tree beels 57 yeared. Results were variable, but de majority of researchers from that foci inscence participants were howing that foci access participants. Based on the current findings, the information in the table in subrentification of the strength of the strength of the strength of the strength projet in mixed age repeatations largely consisting of people levs than 40 years of age to future, if the relationship between field accessing and that is not be clientified, researchers and and wave mixed are preductions who are are interpreted for estimation would add only one mixed are preductions who are are interpreted for estimation would be added only an emission are preductions who are are interpreted for estimation.

Food Security and Direct Physical Health Outcomes

Biod Prossers. After got 3 mer food income proofer neuroph having high blood pressure compared to food accure proofer, (43, 5% versus 35, 5%), $z^{(1)} = 364$, P_{1} = 000, mildway frequency analysis, Genderi agrificanty instructed with food security and blood pressure, $z^{(1)} = 1232$, $z^{(2)} = 000$. But both mult and finalle food instrucproptie protein laving higher blood pressure that compareling food that individual 1: be intool instificient households were more likely to report having higher blood pressure. Since they collespace alcows ages, they providely findite to date: that its efficient interactivity in only associated with high broof pressure in differ.

Stomack or Interinal UEers. Individuals above age 31 who were field inaccure were more likely to report having a atomach utere compared to those who were field secure, (6.3) weress 3.15(k), $g^2(1) = 10.99$, p < 0.001, multiway frequency analysis. This relationship might reflect distay differences or the extreme stress that sometimes is associated with humer.

Bowed Disorders, Cardia's Disease ar Collin, People and Sand slate were asked whether they suffered from a bowed disorder such as Coha's ce collink. A partier processing of food inscuree people reprodud positivity ($223 \times \text{verso}$, $133 \times y_{2}^{-}(1) =$ 631, p < 0.003. Since high levels of frait and vegetable instale is associated with a reduced in its d bowed disorders and food inscuree people have lower instale of fraits and vegetables, this radiag und be expected. Heart Disease. People above age 31 who were food inscenze as compared to food secure were more likely to report heart disease (7.4% versus 6.5%), $g^2(1) = 11.77$, p <0.001. Ablowugh this percentage difference is small, it might have significant headth implications across the population. Vocovis and Taranka (2003) also foods that heart disease was more common in food inscenze individuals unitar larger Crandian sample.

Othermorems, The likelihood of having onteoperosis was ajufficiantly related to food innecurity only at age 41 to 65 (40):75 versus $12.87_{10}, x^{+}(1) = 14.88_{\mu}, r < 0.001.$ Sinyringingh, this difference was not found in all other age propuse. Juff hviti and vegetable initiale and calcium may reduce the tisk of onteoprovis (Lanham-New, 2006) and people who are food inneces how bewer calcium and fluit and vegetable initiale than do food storeser opeople (Dorn et al., 2017).

Builden: Food interest as compared to food secure individual were more likely to report heating diabetes at gate 25 to 39 (4.35); versa (9.95) and 56 to 109 (7.95); versa (9.95), and loss likely to your heating diabetes gates (0.96), (9.95); versa (0.97), $(q^{e_2} > 933, p^{e_2} < 0.033)$. Even though these differences are not significant, the revenal is interesting in it might reduce though areas of directive and the individual proting of the significant of the significant of the significant of the proting of the significant of th

Cancer. Food security was not significantly related to the likelihood of having cancer at any age. There does not seem to be any prior reports on the relationship between food security and cancer. (Given that food insecure propels were more likely to report smoking, the lack of an association between food insecurity and cancer, projucidarly hung cancer, is somewhat surprising. Other Leng Tren Periode or Mental Hansen, At agost 22 w 21⁻, for inscore as compared to food secure, individuals were more likely to repeat holes due to them objection emenal litense excluding high hole persone, haved reasone, and attentse, thereas a second second second second second second attentse, thereas a second second second second second second influences update holes in its investing that the second second second influences the photostatic second second second second influences and the holes in the second second second second influences and the holes in the second inscore as compared to food second schlubse. Food inscores adults were more likely to repeat food dimension (2000).

Bit Pervised Health. Perjeg and 12 and up ware adult both the provident distribution. As not in the 16.1 food interest information arrows that appears much likely to preview their health as poor, fair or good, and less likely report heart health as very good or excellent that see not food score people, $c^{1/2}(0 - 10.5, p^{-1}/2004)$ multisely frequent angularity $(7, 10.5) = 0.55, p^{-1}/2004, p^{-1}/2004, p^{-1}/2004, p^{-1}/2004,$ $multisely frequent angularity <math>(7, 10.5) = 0.55, p^{-1}/2004, p^{-1}/2004, p^{-1}/2004, p^{-1}/2004,$ and previously health (see Table A6 in Appendix A). The same pattern was obtained at allto less of insteme. Circum emaginated*Photogenetics*(Sinfert ed., 2004), Sinfert ed.,2004, Concision ed., 2009. Insert Table 14 about here

It is fullely that food inscores propile accurately preview the trushills an taking to previous the previous propile (Aniano et al., 2004; Cook et al., 2004; Skulicky et al., 2006). They also reports are imperturely polycial illuscess like higher blood pressure, and an international structure of the previous and antiperiod (Holsee & Philey, 2006; Coucciadi et al., 2007; present multy). A number of possible mechanisms have been proposed to account for the finding that field accesses relations to infections, and attenses induced in the prever health health to field mechanism in high-healthing multimetries accelesses diseases developes the infections, and attense induces high blood present end produces hormount inhultance (Aniano et al., 2001; Jh Li duo possible that prever health health to field mecestry by decreming emigrand microaming health decrements, relating a more (or field).

Food Security and Mental Health Outcomes

Satisfaction with Life, As shown in Table 15, food insecure people aged 12 to 71+ were more than 4 times as likely to report being distantified or very dissutified with their lives as compared to food secure people, χ^2 (4) = 44.25, μ < 0.001, mitiway frequency analysis, F (3.16698) = 32.83, μ < 0.001, r^2 = 0.056, regression analysis. Guocaride et al. (2009) reported similar findings with a distert population.

Insert Table 15 about here

Sees of **Fibrierize**, At cash sees min Table 16, shows these were fool increased and 12 to 17 - term some likely to report finding a very stock sense of hochooping and less likely to report finding a very stock grant grant of the softward to community compared to these who were food secures, r'(1) = 113.53, p < 0.001, maltinery frequency analysis. Mongouth the relationship between sense of Hochooping and too foot security its not we docurbed in the lineaux, it may be significant que foot Solicot its not we more docurbed in the lineaux, it may be significant que Solido (2000) report the people who had a weak sense of community belonging also had poore physical and mental bach.

Insert Table 16 about here

Stiff Provided Stress. And ages surveyed, people who were field insective were were likely to perturbative extractions and the likely is report to being strend compared to those who were field areas, $\mu^{-1}(a) = 422, 51, \mu^{--} 6200$, minimized frequency analysis, $P(3, 133) = 1844, km, p^{--} < 630, \mu^{-1} = 0.056$, regression analysis, $P(3, 133) = 1844, km, p^{--} < 630, \mu^{-1} = 0.056$, regression and point of the first strength of the direct strength in the direct strength of the direct strength of the direct strength of the direct strength of $P(3, 133) = 1844, km, p^{--} < 100, \mu^{-1} = 0.056$, and $\mu^{--} = 0.056$, $\mu^{--} = 0.056$,

Insert Table 17 about here

Solid Pervised Manal Holds. A can be seen in Table 11, food inscores people were builted to report excellent or very good mental built and were monthly to report good, fair a goot mental built and it ages an arroyed compared to those show are food accure, $(2^{-1}(2) \rightarrow 23, 2^{-1}, 2^{-0}, 000)$, multively frequency analysis, $(2^{-1}, 100)^{-1}$ and income ($2^{-1}(2) \rightarrow 13, 2^{-1}, 000)$) significantly interacted with food sectory and protected mental built in the millively frequency analysis (see Tables A.7 and A.1 Aprendi A. 1). However, the areas merided built at 100 of good and income it dubtics were built built in relationship. Casculat et al. (2007) found that food income dubtics were built by report good mental builts in were mere littly to suffer from a mond dimender encome for the start disclose.

Insert Table 18 about here

There have been a number of reports liaking food security and the mentul hash of pregnant sources and moders. Laraki et al. (2006) reported that precival areas, which ensky, and depressive sepantisms users non-common monogar pregnant sources in find inscure broadchds. Food inscure mothers as compared to food accore mothers, were more liakity and first from postmarantia stars disorder (Weinteb et al., 2002), might experision and distarce (Strefer et al., 2003), angle ensured analysis, disorder (Whitheb et al., 2006). Based on the present finding, it appears that there is a link between food security and mean bacht that spansa gradee, income, and lifespan. The relationships' useful and marks the security and may be consolidary. In the relationship using data thousands have the security and the relationship.

Summary and Conclusions

Lineaties. The alarbase used in the correct study did net represent the outer charaline parkdism is a moders peeple and advance link (in user network were included in the survey). It was found that 32% of Canadian boundedda were food inscours and that off-reserve advalgnt households experime to a hybrid (13.3%) providence of food inscorely compared to its generative parkdinin (37.8%). It donigitant iving memory and an likely or more likely to be food inscourt han those living off reserves, and attoot all hourdess popular on food inscourts (18.1%). The advalgation inscurvity is the Canadian parkdinin (37.8%) where the prevalence of food inscorely, it has a parket of food inscorely documented here may under-operator the extent of problem in transla.

Control Variables Gender and income were the control variables used in the present analy. The trends held at all levels of gender and income for all the dependent variables corest sedenting variables. The sedential particle biological insidiar helds income fixed increases of allowing of \$17 at compared to how income fixed insidiar helds income fixed increases. The sedential particle biological income mixed and adhet high income fixed increases of likework of the term of magnetized in adventary activities than de comparable fixed second with fixed security that charases and mixtirvel with income fixed increases.

Demographics. The prevalence of food insecurity obtained across the demographic variables investigated was sometimes unexpected and often striking. Particularly noteworthy are the following:(a) 19.6% of the children living with a single natent were food insecure: (b) in contrast, only 1.9% of those 71+ were food insecure: (c) 52.9% of the food insecure below are 18 were male while 43.2% of the food insecure above are 19 were male; (d) although only 3.9% of the middle high income group were food insecure, the group constituted 19.6% of the entire food insecure population; (e) the relationship between food security and education was complex with the individuals who attended a post-secondary school and did not graduate having the highest rate, 12.5%; and (f) those who attended and eraduate from a post-secondary school had the lowest rate of food insecurity, 7.9%, but constituted 41.9% of the food insecure population. Thus, it would appear that children from single parent families merit special attention because they are vulnerable to environmental insult and more likely to be food insecure than other groups. Furthermore, researchers interested in accurately portraying food insecurity must include males, post-secondary graduates, and middle high income people in their samples.

Behaviour That Affect Popsical Haths. Behavioural differences between food inscore and food secure people are unlikely to account for the massive negative effects of colo inscoreding securicity depicial and mental health. It would be premutint, however, to dismiss the possible relationships between behaviours and bowel disorders, stomach utere, outopeoposis, heard teases, blood pressure and duabets. Food insceratiblema erus meet Health to be schedure hand house erus childrance theorem Healthen erus and Healthen erus entitelity to be schedure hand house erus childrance theorem Healthen erus and Healthen erus entitelity to be schedure hand house erus childrance theorem Healthen erus entitelity to be schedure hand house erus childrance theorem Healthen erus entitelity to be schedure hand house erus childrance theorem Healthen erus entitelity to be schedure hand house erus their hand to be schedure hand house erus childrance theorem Healthen erus entitelity to be schedure hand house erus their hand to be schedure hand house erus childrance theorem Healthen erus entitelity to be schedure hand house erus childrance theorem Healthen theorem Healthen erus their healthen erus their healthen erus their hand hand healthen erus their hand hand healthen erus their healthen erus their hand healthen erus their hand healthen erus their hand healthen erus their healthen erus their healthen erus their hand healthen erus their healthen erus their hand healthen erus their healthen erus than their healthen erus their hand healthen erus their healthen erus than their healthen erus their healthen erus than their healthen erus their hand healthen erus their healthen erus than their healthen erus the are least likely to ear thrit and sequelation and more likely to make that finds of accurate shears. The set ofference single to cound it providing the council ratios between food security and bowed disorders, heard disease, high blond pressner, and conceptantia. Similarly, because food secures adult were more likely to gain weight as they are, gain effectionality between the sole security and distance togate across adulted one time individuals. On the other hand, more likely to be disteributed from food instructionality betweening more likely to be disteributed from food instrucindividuals. On the other hand, maching did not appear to differentially affect the likely data distored memory and alexestly image accurate likely and there were no obvious contributions between food security and cancer. Food instruct abults were less likely to didta databolt engened to food secure adults. There were are contellations between food security and other hands instant. There were are contellations between food security and other measures that insight have been mediated by a dotted actuality of a distruction and other measures that insight have been mediated by also databolt securements.

Meaners of Physical and Meall Health. They were model associations between field security and other long term physical and meaner all litenses, well percentral means and the security and other lines and the security for more than 3.5% of the variance. Chargin, food insectors individuals are more likely than food secure individuals to believe that they are afficient with long term litenses, poor popular abalant, were, as does mean than little. Theremers, they repert a worker sense of belonging to the community and less satisfaction with life, To the extent that their represents the arvery questions accountly reflect their lives, food means and the arvery questions mean their percent percent percent percent percent and percent for the mean question accountly reflect their lives, food insectivity is do eccountered for them cancer and critical sections that the section of the document of the section of the sec

51

food and/or actual hunger (about 33% of the food insecure population reported moderate or severe hunger) is probably the key mediator that accounts for these relationships. If this conclusion is correct, than providing all citizens with guaranteed access to food housdal improve meet and pelvical hunders, thus, relate health costs substantially.

References

- Adam, E. J., Grummer-Strawn, L., & Chavez, G. (2003). Food insecurity is associated with increased risk of obesity in California women. *The Journal of Nutrition*, 133, 1070-1074.
- Al-Sahab, B., Lanes, A., Feldman, M., & Tamim, H. (2010). Prevalence and predictors of 6-month exclusive breastfeeding among Canadian women: a national survey. *Peaharics*, 10, 1-9.
- Alaimo, K., Olson, C. M., Frongillo, E. A., & Briefel, R. R. (2001). Food insufficiency, family inceme, and health in US preschool and school-aged children. *American Journal of Public Health*, 91, (5), 781-786.
- Alaimo, K., Olson, C. M., & Frongillo, E. A. (2001a). Low family inceme and food insufficiency in relation to overweight in US children. Archives of Pediatrics and Adulercent Medicine, 155, 1161-1167.
- Alaimo, K., Olson, C. M., and Frongillo, E. A. (2001b). Food insufficiency and American school-aged children's cognitive, academic, and psychosocial development. *Pediatrics*, 108, (1), 44-53.

Alaimo, K., Olson, C. M., and Frongillo, E. A. (2002). Family food insufficiency, but

not low family income, is positively associated with dysthymia and suicide symptoms in adolescents. The Journal of Nutrition, 132, 719-725.

Armour, B. S., Pitts, M. M., Lee, C. (2008). Cigarette smoking and food insecurity among low-income families in the United States, 2001. *American Journal of Health Promotion*, 22, (6), 386-390.

Basiotis, P. (2003). Food insufficiency and prevalence of overweight among adult women. Family Economics and Nutrition, 15, (2), 55-57.

Bickel, G., Nord, M., Price, C., Hamilton, W., & Cook, J. (2000). Guide to measuring household food security. U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food, and Nutrition Service, Alexandria V A.

Bhargava, A., Jolliffe, D., & Howard, L. L. (2008). Socio-economic, behavioral and environmental factors predicted body weights and household food insecurity scores in the early childhood longitudinal study-kindergarten. *British Journal* of *Vasitismi*, 100, 438-444.

Blumberg, S.J., Bialostosky, K., Briefel, R.R., & Hamilton, W.L. (1999). The effectiveness of a short-form of the household food security scale. *American Journal of Public Health*, 89, (8) 1231-1234. Bowman, S.A., & Harris, E. W. (2003). Food security, dictary choices, and television-viewing status of preschool-aged children living in single-parent or two-parent households. *Family Economics and Natrition Review*, 15, (2), 29-34.

Canadian Association of Food Banks. Hanger Count 2004. Poverty in a Land of plenty: Towards a Hoger-free Canada: Toronto, Ontario, Canada: Canadian Association of Food Banks: 2004.

Casey, P. H., Simpson, P. M., Gossett, J. M., Bogle, M. L., Champagne, C. M., Connell, C., Hanha, D., McCabe-Seilers, B., Robbins, J. M., Stuff, J. E., & Weber, J. (2006). The association of child and household food insecurity with childhood overveight taxar. *Polarizes*, *118*, (5), e1406–1413.

Casey, P. H., Szeto, K., Lensing, S., Bogle, M., & Weber, J. (2001). Children in food-insufficient, low-income families. Archives of Podiatrics and Adolescent Medicine, 155, (4), 508-514.

Che, J., & Chen, J. (2001). Food insecurity in Canadian households. *Health Reports*, 12 (4) 11-22.

Cole, T.J., Bellizzi, M. C., Flegel, K. M., & Dietz, W. H. (2000). Establishing a standard definition for child overweight and obesity wordwide: International survey. *British Medical Journal*, 320, 1240-1243.

Cosk, J. T., Frank, D. A., Berkowetz, C., Black, M. M., Cassy, P.J., Cutt, D.B., Meyers, A. F. Zahliraz, N., Saalicky, A., Levenson, S. M., Heeren, T. C., & Nord, M. (2004). Food inscentify is associated with adverse health concenses among human infinits and todflers. *The Journal of Natrition, 114*, 1423-1438.

Cook, J. T., Frank, D. A., Levenson, S. M., Nenult, N. B., Herens, T. C., Black, M. M., Beckowitz, C., Casey, P. H., Meyers, A. F., Cuns, D. B., & Chilton, M. (2006). Child food insecurity increases risks posed by household food insecurity to young children's health. *The Journal of Nutrition*, 136, 1073-1076.

Cutler-Triggs, C., Fyyer, G. E., Miyoshi, T. J., & Weitzman, M. (2008). Increased rates and severity of childi and adult food insecurity in households with adult sumkers. Archives of Pediatric and Adolescent Medicine, 162, (11), 1056-1062.

Dixon, L. B., Winkleby, M. A., & Radimer, K. L. (2001). Dietary intakes and serum

nutrients differ between adults from food insufficient and food sufficient families: Third national health and nutrition examination survey, 1988-1994. The Journal of Natrition, 131, 1232-1246.

Dubois, L. (2006). Food matrition and population health: From scarcity to social inequalities. In: Heyman, J., Hertzman, C., Barer, M. L., & Evans, R. G., Editors, *Healthier Societies: From analysis to action*, Oxford University Press, New York.

Dubois, L., Farmer, A., Girard, M., & Porcherie, M. (2006). Family food insufficiency is related to overweight among preschoolers. *Social Sciences & Medicine*, 63, (6), 1503-1516.

Gao, X., Scott, T., Falcon, L. M., Wilde, P. E., & Tucker, K. L. (2009). Food insecurity and cognitive function in Puerto Rican adults. American Journal of Clinical Nutrition, 89, (4), 1197-1203.

Grantham-McGregor, S. (1995). A review of studies of the effect of severe malnutrition on mental development. *Journal of Nutrition*, 125, 22338-22388.

Gucciardi, E., DeMelo, M., Vogt, J., & Stewart, D. (2009). Exploration of the

relationship between household food insecurity and diabetes in Canada. Diabetes Care, 32, (12), 2218-2224.

Gulliford, M. C., Mahabir, D., & Rocke, B. (2003). Food insecurity, food choices, and body mass index in adults: nutrition transition in Trindud and Tobago. *International Journal of Epidemiology*, 32, 508-516.

Gulliford, M., Nunes, C., & Rocke, B. (2006). Food insecurity, weight control practices and body mass index in adolescents. *Public Health Nutrition*, 9, 570-574.

Gunderson, C. & Kreider, B. (2009). Bounding the effects of food insecurity on children's health outcomes. *Journal of Health Economics*, 10, 1-13

Gunderson, C., Lohman, B. J., Garasky, S., Stewart, S., & Eisenmann, J. (2009). Food security, maternal stressors, and overweight among low-income US children: Results from the rational health and mutetition. *Pediatrics*, 122, (1) 529-540.

Hadley, C., Mulder, M., & Fitzherbert, E. (2007). Seasonal food insecurity and perceived social support in rural Tanzania. *Public Health Natrition*, 10, (6), 544-551.

Hadley, C., & Patil, C. L. (2006). Food insecurity in rural Tanzania is associated with

maternal anxiety and depression. American Journal of Human Biology, 18, 359-368.

Hadley, C., Tegegn, A., Tessema, F., Cowan, J. A., Asefu, M., & Galea, S. (2008). Food insecurity, strendt life events, and symptoms of anxiety and depression in east Africa: evidence from the Gilgel Gilbe growth and development study. *Journal of Epidemiology and Community Heads*, 62, 980-966.

Hanson, K. L., Sobal, J., & Frongillo, E. A. (2007). Gender and martial status clarify associations between food insecurity and body weight. *The Journal of Natrition*, 137, 1460-1465.

Health Canada (2007). Income related household food security in Canada. Canadian Community Health Survey Cycle 2.2, Natrition (2004).

Heffin, C., Siefert, K., & Williams, D. (2005). Feed insufficiency and women's mental health: findings from a 3-year panel of welfare recipients. *Social Science* and Medicine, 61, (9), 1971-1982.

Holben, D., & Pheley, A. M. (2006). Diabetes risk and obesity in food-insecure households in rural Appalachian Ohio. Public Health Research, Practise, and Policy, J, (3), 1-9. Jimenez-Cruz, A., Bacanli-Gascon, & Spinller, A. (2003). Obesity and hunger among Mexican-Indian migrant children on the US-Mexico border. *International Journal of Obreirs* 27, 740-747.

Jones, S.J., Jahns, L., Laraia, B.A., & Haughton, B. (2003). Lower risk of overweight in school-aged food insecure girls who participate in food assistance. Archives of Pediatrics and Adolescent Medicine, 157, 780-784.

Jyoti, D. F. Frongillo, E.A., & Jones, S. J. (2005). Food insecurity affects school children's academic performance, weight gain, and social skills. *The Journal of Natrition, 135*, 2831-2839.

Kaiser, L.L., Melgar-Quinonez, H. R., Lamp, C.L., Johns, M. C., Sutherlin, J. M., & Harwood, J. O. (2002). Food security and nutritional outcomes of prescheolage Mexican-American children. Journal of the American Dieteric Association (102) 524–525.

Kaiser, L. L., Melgar-Quinnnez, H., Townsend, M. S., Nicholson, Y., Fuji, M., Martin, A.C., & Lamp, C.L. (2003). Food insecurity and food supplies in Latino homeholds with young children. *Journal of Natrition and Education Relowing*, 5(3):148-153.
Kaiser, L. L., Townsend, M. S., Melgar-Quinonez, H. R., Fujii, M. L., & Crawford, P. B. (2004). Choice of instrument influences relations between food insecutity and obesity in Latino weenen. *The American Journal of Clinical Nurthine*, 80 (5):1372-1378.

Kirkpatrick, S. (Unpublished). Analysis of the 2000-01 CCHS food security indicator questions. Toronto: Department of Nutritional Sciences, University of Toronto.

Kirkpatrick, S., & Tarawak, V. (2008). Food insecurity is associated with matrient inadequacies among Canadian adults and adolescents. *The Journal of Natrition*, 138, 604-612.

Kendall, A., Olson, C.M., & Frongillo, E. A. (1995). Validation of the Radimen/Cornell measures of hunger and food security. *The Journal of Nutrition*, 125, 2793-2801.

Kendell, A., Olson, C. M., & Frongillo, E. A. (1996). Relationship of hunger and food insecurity to food availability and consumption. *Journal of the American Disteric Association*, 96, (10), 1019-1024. Lamham-New, S. A. (2006). Fruit and vegetables: The unexpected natural answer to the question of osteoporosis prevention. *American Journal of Clinical Natrition*, 23. (6) 1254-1255.

Laraia, B., Siega-Riz, A. M., Gunderson, C. & Dole, N. (2006). Psychosocial factors and socio-economic indicators are associated with household food insecurity among pregnant women. *The Journal of Nutrition*, 136, 177-182.

Lartio-Lahteenkorva, S., & Lahelma, E. (2001). Food insecurity is associated with past and present economic disadvantage and body mass index. *The Journal* of Natrition, 131, 2880-2884.

Ledrou, I., & Gervais J. (2005). Food insecurity. Health Reports, 16 (3) 47-50.

Lyons, A., Park, J., & Nelson, C. H. (2008). Food insecurity and obesity: A comparison of self-reported and measured height and weight. *American Journal of Public Health*, 98, (4) 751-757.

Marco, M., & Thorburn, S. (2009). The relationship between income and food insecurity among Oregon residents: Does social support matter? *Public Health Nutrition*, 136, 1-9. Martin, K. S., & Ferris, A.M. (2007). Food insecurity and gender are risk factors for obesity. Journal of Nutrition and Education Behavior, 39, 31-36.

Matheson, D. M., Varady, J., Varady, A., & Killen J. D. (2002). Household food security and nutritional status of Hispanic children in the fifth grade. American Journal of Clinical Nutrition, 76, (1) 210-217.

Melntyre, L., Conner, S. K., & Warren, J. (2000). Child hunger in Canada: Results of the 1994 national longitudinal survey of children and youth. Canadian Medical Association Journal, 163 (8), 961-965.

Meals on Wheels Association of America Foundation. (2008). The causes, consequences, and future of senior hunger in America.

Oh, S.Y., & Hong, M. J. (2003). Food insecurity is associated with dietary intuke and body size of Korean children from low-income families in urban areas. *European Journal of Clinical Nutrition*, 57, 1598-1604.

Olson, C. M. (1999). Nutrition and health outcomes associated with food insecurity and hunger. *The Journal of Natrition*, 129, 521-524.

- Olson, C. (2005). Food insecurity in women. Topics in Clinical Nutrition, 20, (4), 321-328.
- Park, K., Kersey, M., Geppert, J., Story, M., Cutts, D., & Himes, J. H. (2009). Household food insecurity is a risk factor for iron-deficiency anaemia in a multi-ethnic, low income sample of infants and toddlers. *Public Health Narriton*, 10, 1-9.

Racine, E. F., Jemison, K., Huber, L. R., & Arif, A. A. (2008). The well-being of children in food insecure households: Results from The eastern Caribbean child vulnerability study 2005. *Public Health Nutrition*, *12*, (9), 1443-1450.

Reid, L. (2000). The Consequences of Food Insecurity for Child Well-Being. An Analysis of Children's School Achievement, Psychological Well-Being, and Health. (Joint Center for Poverty Research Working Paper 137).

Ross-Jacobs, R., Black, M., Casey, P., Cook, J., Cutts, D., Chilton, M., Herren, T., Levenson, S., Meyers, A., & Frank, D. (2008). Household food insecurity: Associations with at-risk infinit and toddler development. *Pediatrics*, 121, (1), 65–72.

Rose, D. & Bodor, N. (2006). Household food insecurity and overweight status in young school children: Results from the early childhood longitudinal study. Pediatrics, 117, (2), 464-473.

Sartio-Lahteenkorva, S., & Lahelma, E. (2001). Food insecurity is associated with past and present economic disadvantage and body mass index. *The Journal of Nutrition*, 131, 2880-2884.

Sheilds, M. (2008). Community belonging and self perceived health. *Health Reports*, 19, (2), 1-10.

Siefert, K., Heflin, C.M., Coecoran, M. E., & Williams, D. R. (2001). Food insufficiency and the physical and mental health of low income women. *Women & Health*, 32, 159-177.

Skalicky, A., Meyers, A. F., Adams, W. G., Yang, Z., Cook, J. T. & Frank, D. A. (2006). Child food insecurity and iron-deficiency anemia in low-income infants and toddlers in the United States. *Maternal Child Health*, 10, 177-185.

Statistics Canada (2004). Canadian Community Health Survey Cycle 2.2. [Userguide for the Public Use Microdata File] First Edition, Ottawa, ON: Statistics Canada.

Stuff, J. E., Casey, P.H., Szeto, K. L., Gossett, J. M., Robbins, J.M., Simpson, P. M.,

Connell, C., & Bogle, M. L. (2004). Household food insecurity is associated with adult health status. *The Journal of Nutrition*, 134, 2330-2335.

- Tarasuk, V. (2001). A critical examination of community-based responses to household food insecurity in Canada. *Health Education & Behavior, 28* (4), 487-499.
- Tarasuk, V. (2005). Household food insecurity in Canada. Topics in Clinical Nutrition, 20, (4), 299-312.
- Tayie, F. A., & Zizza, C. A. (2009). Height differences and the associations between food insecurity, percentage body fat and BMI among men and women. *Public Health Nutrition*, 12, (10) 1855-1861.
- Townsend, M. S., Peerson, J., Love, B., Achterberg, C., & Murphy, S. P. (2001). Food insecurity is positively related to overweight in women. *American Society* of Nutrition Science, 131, 1738-1745.

Vozoris, N. T., & Tarasuk, V. S. (2003). Household food insufficiency is associated with poorer health. *The American Society for Natritional Sciences*, 133, 120-126. Weinreb, L., Wehler, C., Perloff, J., Scott, R., Hosmer, D., Sagor, I., & Gunderson, C. (2002). Hunger: Its impact on children's health and mental health. *Pediatrics*, 110, 41-45.

Whitaker, R., Phillips, S., & Orzol, S. (2006). Food insecurity and the risks of depression and anxiety in mothers and behavior problems in their preschool aged children. *Pediatrice*, 118, e859-868.

Whitaker, R. & Sarin, A. (2007). Change in food security status and change in weight are not associated in urban women with preschool children. *The Journal* of Natrition, 137, 2134-2139.

Widorne, R., Neumark-Sztainer, D., Haman, P. J., Haines, J., & Story, M. (2009). Lating when there is not enough food to est: Eating behaviors and perceptions of food among food insecure youths. *American Journal of Public Health*, 199, (5):82–828.

Wilde, P. E., & Peterman, J. N. (2006). Individual weight change is associated with household food security status. *The Journal of Natrition*, 136, 1395-1400.

Winicki, J. & Jemison, K. (2003). Food security and hunger in the kindergarten

classroom: Its effect on learning and growth. Contemporary Economic

Policy, 21, 145-157.

Summary of the Literature on Food Insecurity and BMI in Children and Adults. *Quantitative Data

BMI	Women	Men	Girls	Boys
Measured				
BMI greater or a	Basiotis (2003),	Hanson et al.	Alaimo, Olson, &	Casey et al.
larger percentage	age-19 to 55	(2007), age=20+,	Frongillo (2001a),	(2006), age=3 to
of overweight/	years, N=5241	N+8510	age 12 to 16 yrs, N=	17 yrs, N=6995
obese in food			9196	
insecure	Hanson et al.	Holben & Pheley		Dubois et al.
	(2007), age=20+,	(2006), age=18	Casey, Simpson,	(2006), age=1.5 to
	N+8510	years, N+2580	Gossett, Bogle, Champagne,	4.5 yrs, N=2103
	Holben & Pheley	Martin & Ferris	Cornell, Harsha,	Gunderson &
	(2006), age= 18	(2007), age= 18 to	McCabe-Sellers,	Kreider (2009),
	years, N=2580	66 yrs, N=200	Robbins, Staff, &	age 2 to 19,
			Weber (2006),	N=6056
	Kaiser et al.		age=3 to 17 yrs,	
	(2004), age=18+		N=6995	*Jyoti, et al.
	years, N=561			(2005), age=5
			Dabois, Farmer,	them 8 yes,
	Martin & Ferris		Girard, & Porcherie,	N=21260
	(2007), age= 18 to		(2006), age+1.5 to	
	66 yrs, N=200		4.5 yrs, N=2103	*Oh & Hong
				(2003), age 4 to
	*Olson (1999),		Gunderson &	12 years, N=370
	age=20-39 yrs,		Kreider (2009), age	
	N-193		2 to 19, N=6056	Widome et al.
				(2009), age=12 to
	*Tayie & Zizza		*Jyeti, Frongillo, &	17, N=4746
	(2009), age=18 to		Jones (2005), age=5	
	50 yrs, N=4026		thru 8 yrs, N=21260	

Townsend et al. (2001), age=20+ years, N=9541

Peterman (2006), age=1\$+, N=9698 *Oh & Hong (2003), age=4 to 12 yrs, N=370

Widome et al. (2009), age=12 to 17, N=4746

NO SIGNIFICAN

differences

Whitakor & Sarin (2007), age 18+ (years, N=1751 2

(2003), age+19 to 55 years, N=5241 Holben & Pheley (2006), age=18 *Bhargava et al. (2008), age=6 to 10 yrs, N=19684

Gulliford et al. (2006), age=16 yrs, N=1903

N=1903

years, N=2580 *Olson (1999), age=20-39 yrs, N=193

Gundersen et al. (2008), age=2 so 19,

N+6056

Tewnsend et al. Gandersen, (2001), age=20+ Lohman, Garosky, years, N=9541 Stewner &

Whitaker & Sarin (2007), age 18+ years, N=1751

Eiseemann (2009), ann=3 to 17 yrs.

N=\$41 Kaiser et al. (200 aze=3 to 6 yrs.

Martin & Ferris

(2009), age=3 to Kaiser et al. (2002), 17 yrs, N+841

19, N+6056 Gandersen et a (2009), age=3 17 yrs, N+841

Alaine, Ohen &

Fronzillo (2001a).

age 12 to 16 yrs, N= 9196

Bharcava et al.

(2003), age=6 to 10 yrs, N=19684

Galliford et al. (2006), age=16 yrs, N=1903

Gandersen et al. (2008), aug-2 so

Kaise

(2002), age=3 to 6 yrs, N=211

		(2007), age=2 to 12	
		утя, N=212	Martin & Ferris, (2007), age= 18 to 66 yrs, N=200
BMI greater or a	Hanson et al.	Jimenez-Cruz,	Jimenez-Cruz,
larger percentage	(2007), age=20+,	Bacardi-Gascon, &	Bacardi-Gascen,
of overweight'	N=8510	Spindler (2003), age	& Spindler
obese in food		8 to 10 yrs, N=1776	(2003), age-8 to
secure	*Tayie & Zizza		10 yrs, N+1767
	(2009), age=18 to 50 yrs, N=4026	Matheson et al. (2002), age =10, N=124;	Matheson et al. (2002), age =10, N=124
		Rose & Bodor	
		(2006), age=5 thur7 yrs, N=12890	Rose & Bodor (2006), age=5 thur? yrs,

Age Group (Years)	Frequency of Each Age Group in the Sample	Percentage of the Total Population	Percentage of the Food Insecure Population	Percentage of Food Insecure Within Each Age Group	
Under 1	277	1.2%	1.6%	13.4%	
1-3	780	3.5%	4.5%	13.3%	
4-8	1428	6.4%	7.3%	11.9%	
9-13	1477	6.6%	8.9%	14.1%	
14-18	1198	5.4%	4.5%	8.8%	
19-24	1993	9.0%	13.3%	15.6%	
25-30	1756	7.9%	10.1%	13.4%	
31-35	1425	6.4%	7.1%	11.6%	
36-40	1616	7.3%	11.1%	16.1%	
41-45	1951	8.8%	7.6%	9.1%	
46-50	1674	7.5%	6.7%	9.3%	
51-55	1243	5.6%	5.4%	10.2%	
56-60	1211	5.4%	5.6%	10.8%	
61-65	1076	4.8%	2.6%	5.7%	
66-70	878	3.9%	1.8%	4.7%	
71+	2264	10.2%	1.8%	1.9%	
Total	22247	100%	100%		ł

The Estimated Percentages and Frequencies in Four Categories by Age.

The Estimated Percentages and Frequencies in Four Categories by Children's Living Arrangement.

Living Arrangement for Children	Frequency at each Living Arrangement in the Sample	Percentage of Total Population of Children	Percentage of the Food Insecure Population of Children	Percentage of Food Insecure Within Each Living Arrangement
Child Living with One Parent	1324	24.1%	44.8%	19.6%
Child Living with Both Parents	4160	75.9%	55.2%	7.7%
Total	5484	100%	100%	

The Estimated Percentages and Frequencies in Four Categories by Adult Living

Arrangement.

Living Arrangement for Adults	Frequency at Each Living Arrangement	Percentage of Total Population of Adults	Percentage of the Food Insecure Population of Adults	Percentage of Food Insecure Within Each Living Arrangement
Unattached Living Alone	3315	22.9%	28.9%	12.9%
Unattached Living with Others	1360	9.4%	15.2%	16.5%
Living with Spouse	3985	27.5%	12.0%	4,4%
Parent living with Spouse/Children	4805	33.1%	31.8%	9.8%
Single Parent Living with Children	1040	7.2%	12.1%	17.3%
Total	14505	100%	100%	60.9%

The Estimated Percentages and Frequencies in Four Categories by Martial Status in Ages 19+.

Marital Status	Frequency at Each Category in the Sample	Percentage of the Total Population of Adults	Percentage of the Food Insecure Population of Adults	Percentage of Food Insecun Within Each Category
Married	6493	48.9%	34.4%	7.0%
Common Law	1289	9.7%	10.9%	11.2%
Widowed, Separated, or Divorced	2406	18.1%	20.3%	11.2%
Single	36997	23.3%	34.3%	14.7%
Total	13285	100%	100%	

The Estimated Percentages and Frequencies in Four Categories by Gender From Birth to 18 and 19+.

Gender	Frequency at Each Category in the Sample	Percentage of the Population of Either Children or Adults	Percentage of the Food Insecure Population of Either Children or Adults	Percentage of Food Insecure Within Each Category
Male (≤18)	4458	49.9%	52.9%	12.9%
Female (≤18)	4481	50.1%	47.1%	11.4%
Total Birth to 18	8939	100%	100%	
Male (19+)	6334	47.6%	43.2%	9.1%
Female (19+)	6973	52,4%	56.8%	10.8%
Total 19+	13307	100%	100%	-

The Estimated Percentages and Frequencies in Four Categories by Income.

Income	Frequency at Each Category in the Sample	Percentage of the Total Population	Percentage of the Food Insecure Population	Percentage of Food Insecure Within Each Category
Low Income	3288	14.8%	44.2%	31.4%
Middle Income	7148	32.1%	36.0%	11.7%
Middle High Income	11810	53.1%	19.8%	3.9%
Total	22246	100%	100%	

Education	Frequency at Each Category in the Sample	Percentage of the Total Population of Adults	Percentage of the Food Insecure Population of Adults	Percentage of Food Insecure Within Each Category
Less than Secondary School Graduation	3092	26.0%	28.2%	10.1%
Secondary School Graduation	2174	18.2%	21.4%	10.9%
Some Post- secondary	753	6.3%	8.5%	12.5%
Post-Secondary Graduation	5894	49.5%	41.9%	7.9%
Total	11913	100%	100%	

The Estimated Percentages and Frequencies in Four Categories by Education in Adults Aged 25+.

The Percentages and Frequencies of Individuals who Report Smoking in Various Categories in Ages 12-71+.

Type of Smoker	Percent of Food Insecure	Frequency of Food Insecure	Percent of Food Secure	Frequency of Food Secure
Daily	37.5	625	20.3	3042
Occasional	6.4	103	3.8	565
Former	16.0	270	25.7	3836
Never Smoked	40.2	673	50.3	7599
Total N		1671		15042

The Percentages and Frequencies of Individuals who Reported Drinking Alcohol in Various Categories in Ages 14 to18 and 31 to 71+.

Age	Frequency of	Percent	Frequency	Percent	Frequency
	Alcohol	of Food	of Food	of Food	of Food
		Insecure	Insecure	Secure	Secure
14 to 18	<1 per Month	46.5	53	46.1	576
	1 per Month	13.2	15	18.5	231
	2 to 3 Month	11.4	13	19.1	239
	1 per Week	21.9	25	10.2	127
	2 to 3 Week	5.3	6	4.7	59
	4 to 6 Week	0.9	1	1.2	15
	Every Day	0.9	1	0.2	2
	Total N		114		1249
31 to 71+	<1 per Month	32.2	183	25.9	1824
	1 per Month	17.2	98	11.5	612
	2 to 3 Month	15.3	65	11.8	1323
	1 per Week	17.6	100	15.5	1089
	2 to 3 Week	8.6	48	18.8	1323
	4 to 6 Week	2.6	16	5.9	413
	Every Day	6.5	26	10.7	757

Total N	536	7341	
	81		

The Percentages and Frequencies of the Number of Hours per Week Spent Engaged in Sedentary Activity in Various Income Categories in Ages 12-17.

	Number of	Percent	Frequency	Percent	Frequency
	hours of	of Food	of Food	of Food	of Food
	Sedentary	Insecure	Insecure	Secure	Secure
	Activity				
Low	0-19 hrs.	46.0	69	44.8	146
	20-29 hrs.	34.0	51	37.4	122
	30+ hrs.	20.0	30	17.8	58
	Total N		150		326
Middle	0-19 hrs.	26.5	30	46.2	431
income	20-29 hrs.	47.8	54	32.0	299
	30+ hrs.	25.7	29	21.8	203
	Total N		113		933
Middle High	0-19 hrs.	13.7	7	44.4	628
Income	20-29 hrs.	45.1	23	31.4	445
	30+ hrs.	41.2	21	24.2	342
	Total N		51		1415

The Mean BMI for Individuals Aged 2 to 71+.

*Quantitative data

Age	Mean BMI for Food	Mean BMI for Foo	
	Insecure	Secure	
2 to 18	19.7	19.6	
19 to 40	26.7	25.9	
41 to 55	27.4	27.7	
56+	26.5	27.7	



The Percentages and Frequencies for Each BMI Classification in Individuals Aged 2 to 71+.

*Qualitative data

Age	Body Mass Index	Percent of Food Insecure	Frequency of Food Insecure	Percent of Food Secure	Frequency of Food Secure
2 to 17	Neither Overweight or Obese	68.5%	501	73.4%	5839
	Overweight	20.7%	151	17.8%	1400
	Obese	10.8%	79	7.9%	622
18 to 40	Underweight	3.8%	16	3.9%	119
	Normal	45.2%	190	48.3%	1893
	Overweight	28.1%	118	31.2%	1223
	Obese	22.9%	96	17.4%	683
41 to 55	Underweight	3.3%	5	0.9%	26
	Normal	40.5%	62	34.8%	956
	Overweight	28.1%	43	37.6%	1034
	Obese	28.1%	43	26.6%	732
56+	Underweight	1.2%	3	1.4%	68
	Normal	46.3%	114	29,2%	1431
	Overweight	26.8%	66	42.9%	2104
	Obese	25.6%	63	26.6%	1303

The Percentages and Frequencies of Individuals who Rate Their Health in Various Categories in Ages 12 to 71+.

Perceived Health	Percent of Food Insecure	Frequency of Food Insecure	Percent of Food Secure	Frequency of Food Secure
Excellent	9.5	159	19.8	2976
Very Good	26.6	446	35.4	5327
Good	39.1	655	32.2	4837
Fair	16.5	276	9.8	1481
Poor	8.3	139	2.8	420
Total N		1675		15041

- 85

The Percentages and Prequencies of Individuals who Rate Their Satisfaction with Life in Various Categories in Ages 12 to 71+.

Satisfaction with Life	Percent of Food Insecure	Frequency of Food Insecure	Percent of Food Secure	Frequency of Food Secure
Very Satisfied	13.2	220	34.3	5152
Satisfied	58.6	978	56.0	8423
Neither	13.7	228	6.8	1028
Dissatisfied	11.4	190	2.5	369
Very Dissatisfied	3.2	54	0.4	60
Total N		1670		15032

The Percentages and Frequencies of Individuals who Rate Their Sense of Belonging to Their Community in Various Categories in Ages 12-71+.

Sense of	Percent of	Frequency	Percent of	Frequency
Belonging	Food	of Food	Food	of Food
	Insecure	Income	Secure	Secure
Very Strong	14.4	243	22	3305
Somewhat Strong	40.8	672	41.7	6240
Somewhat Weak	22.5	355	24.1	3599
Very Weak	22.5	375	12.4	1851
Total N		1645		14995

The Percentages and Frequencies of Individuals who Rate Their Stress in Various Categories in Ages 15-71+.

Perceived	Percent	Frequency	Percent	Frequency
Stress	of Food	of Food	of Food	of Food
	Insecure	Insecure	Secure	Secure
None	6.4	96	12.6	1713
Weak	11.9	178	26.6	3633
Moderate	37.7	564	39.7	5415
Strong	34.4	515	17.8	2433
Extreme	9.7	145	3.3	446
Total N		1498	_	13640

The Percentages and Frequencies of Individuals who Rate Their Mental Health in Various Categories in Ages 12-71+.

Perceived	Percent of	Frequency	Percent	Frequency
Mental	Food	of Food	of Food	of Food
Health	Insecure	Insecure	Secure	Secure
Excellent	20.2	337	37.2	5588
Very Good	28.9	482	35.3	5309
Good	33.9	564	23.1	3469
Fair	12.5	208	3.9	590
Poor	4.4	74	0.5	81
Total N		1665		15037

Appendix A

Table A1

The Percentages and Frequencies of Males and Females who Report Smoking in Various Categories in Ages 12 to 71+.

Gender	Type of	Percent of	Percent	Frequency	Frequency
	Smoker	Food	of Food	of Food	of Food
		Insecure	Secure	Insecure	Secure
Male	Daily	37.8	22.6	278	1642
	Occasional	8.4	4.1	62	298
	Former	14.9	29.8	110	2170
	Never	38.9	43.5	286	3169
	Total N			736	7279
Female	Daily	37.1	18	347	1400
	Occasional	4.4	3.4	41	267
	Former	17.1	21.5	160	1666
	Never	41.4	57.1	387	4430
	Total N			935	7763

-90

Table A2

The Percentages and Frequencies of Individuals who Report Smoking in Various Categories at Different Incomes in Ages 12 to 71+.

Income	Type of	Percent	Percent	Frequency	Frequency
	Smoker	of Food	of Food	of Food	of Food
		Insecure	Secure	Insecure	Secure
Low	Daily	40.4	21.4	299	353
Income	Occasional	5.1	4.7	38	77
	Former	12.7	21.6	94	356
	Never	41.8	52.3	309	863
	Total N			740	1649
Middle	Daily	38.0	21.1	221	995
income	Occasional	4.1	3.6	24	168
	Former	17.5	24.3	102	1146
	Never	40.4	51.0	235	2403
	Total N			582	4712
Middle High	Daily	30.0	19.5	105	1693
Income	Occasional	12.0	3.7	42	321
	Former	21.1	26.9	74	2335
	Never	36.9	49.9	129	4333

=	Total N	350	8682	
122				
14				
la.				
1.5				
15				
E.s.				
10.9				
		92		

Table A3

The Percentages and Frequencies of Individuals who Report Drinking Alcohol in Various Categories and at Different Incomes in Ages 31 to 71+.

Income	Frequency	Percent	Percent	Frequency	Frequency
	of Alcohol	of Food	of Food	of Food	of Food
		Insecure	Secure	Insecure	Secure
Low Income	<1 per Month	39.3	38.9	95	244
	1 per Month	19.4	14	47	88
	2 to 3 per Month	16.9	6.1	41	38
	1 per Week	9.5	12.3	23	77
	4 to 6 per Week	2.5	4.8	6	30
	Every Day	6.2	10.5	15	66
	Total N			227	543
Middle Income	<1 per Month	32.8	30.8	61	620
	1 per Month	18.3	12.4	34	249
	2 to 3 per Month	7	12.4	13	250
	1 per Week	17.2	14.2	32	286
	2 to 3 per Week	12.9	14.7	24	296

4 to 6 per Week	3.2	4.5	6	90
Every Day	8.6	11	16	222
Total N			186	2013
<1 per Month	19.4	21.8	28	960
1 per Month	12.5	10.8	18	475
2 to 3 per Month	22.9	12.2	33	539
1 per Week	31.3	16.5	45	725
2 to 3 per Week	6.9	21.4	10	944
4 to 6 per Week	2.8	6.6	4	292
Every Day	4.2	10.6	6	468
Total N			144	4403
	4 to 6 per Week Every Day Total N 	4 to 6 per Week 3.2 Every Day 8.6 Total N 19.4 I per Month 12.5 2 to 3 per Month 22.9 I per Month 31.3 2 to 3 per Month 6.9 4 to 5 per Week 2.8 Every Day 2.8 Total N 2.6	stack product 3.2 4.5 Every Day 8.6 1.1 Total N 1.2 1.6 I per Month 1.2.5 1.6.8 2 so 1 per 2.2.2 1.2.2 Der Month 1.3 1.6.5 2 so 3 per 2.9 2.1.4 March 4.86 6.66 Every Day 4.2 1.6.6 Every Day 4.2 1.6.16 Every Day 4.2 1.6.16	star (wear) 3.2 4.5 6 Every Day 8.6 1.1 1.6 Total N 1.6 1.6 1.6 Massion 1.2 1.6 1.6 Jper Month 1.2 1.6 1.6 Ly or York 2.9 1.2 1.6 Part Wath 3.1.3 1.6.5 4.5 Part Wath 3.1.3 1.6.5 4.5 4 to Kynth 4.9 4.6 4.1 Starter 2 2.8 6.4 4.5 Every Date 2.8 6.4 4.6 4.6 Every Date 2.8 2.0 1.6 6.4

Table A4

The Percentages and Frequencies of Individuals who Report Eating Fruits and Vegetables in Various Categories at Different Incomes in Ages 9 to 71+.

Income	Servings	Percent	Percent	Frequency	Frequency
	of fruits	of Food	of Food	of Food	of Food
	and	Insecure	Secure	Insecure	Secure
	vegetables				
Low Income	< 5	82.2	72.6	681	1306
	5 to 10	16.8	25.8	139	465
	10+	1.0	1.6	8	29
	Total N			828	1800
Middle Income	<5	76.1	69.7	494	3575
	5 to 10	22.7	28.6	147	1466
	10+	1.2	1.8	8	90
	Total N			649	5131
Middle High Income	<5	87.7	67.8	335	6354
	5 to 10	12.0	31.3	46	2932
	10+	0.3	1.0	1	92


The Percentages and Frequencies of Males and Females who Report Whether or Not They had High Blood Pressure in Ages 51 to 70.

Gender	High	Percent	Percent	Frequency	Frequency
	Blood	of Food	of Food	of Food	of Food
	Pressure	Insecure	Secure	Insecure	Secure
Male	Yes	12.3	12.5	130	1193
	No	87.7	87.5	926	8359
	Total N			1056	9552
Female	Yes	9.6	14.8	119	1501
	No	90.4	85.2	1122	8659
	Total N			1241	10160
Collansed	Ver	10.9	13.6	249	2694
compoca	140			247	2074
	No	89.1	86.4	2048	17018
	Total N			2297	19712

The Percentages and Frequencies of Individuals who Rate Their Health in Various Categories at Different Incomes in Ages 12 to 71+.

Income	Perceived	Percent	Percent	Frequency	Frequency
	Health	of Food	of Food	of Food	of Food
		Insecure	Secure	Insecure	Secure
Low	Excellent	9.6	14.8	71	244
Income	Very Good	25.8	29.8	191	491
	Good	33.4	35.8	247	590
	Fair	19.6	14.4	145	237
	Poor	11.6	4.2	86	85
	Total N			740	1647
Middle	Excellent	10	18.6	58	877
Income	Very Good	27.8	33.3	162	1569
	Good	42.3	41.6	246	1489
	Fair	13.2	12.7	77	597
	Poor	6.7	3.9	39	185
	Total N			582	4717
Middle High	Excellent	8.6	21.4	30	1856
Income	Very	26.3	37.6	92	3267

Total N			350	8679
Poor	3.7	1.7	13	151
Fair	15.4	7.5	54	647
Good	46	31.8	161	2758
Good				

The Percentages and Frequencies of Males and Females who Rate Their Mental Health in Various Categories in Ages 12 to 71+.

	Perceived Mental	Percent of Food	Percert	Frequency of Food	Frequency of Food
	Health	Insecure	Food Secure	Insecure	Secure
Male	Excellent	22.9	38.1	168	2773
	Very Good	26.1	34.8	191	2529
	Good	35.6	22.7	261	1654
	Fair	10	4	73	292
	Poor	5.5	0.4	40	27
	Total N			733	7275
Female	Excellent	18.1	36.3	169	2815
	Very Good	31.2	35.8	291	2780
	Good	32.5	23.4	303	1815
	Fair	14.5	3.8	135	298
	Poor	3.6	0.7	34	54
	Total N		-	932	7762

The Percentages and Frequencies of Individuals who Rate Their Mental Health in Various Categories at Different Incomes in Ages 12 to 71+.

Income	Perceived	Percent of	Percent	Frequency	Frequency
	Mental	Food	of Food	of Food	of Food
	Health	Insecure	Secure	Insecure	Secure
Low	Excellent	21.4	33.2	157	547
Income					
	Very	31.8	33.3	233	549
	Good				
	Good	29.6	27.5	217	453
	Fair	13	5.4	95	89
	Poor	4.2	0.6	31	10
	1001	4.6	0.0	51	10
	Total N			733	1648
Middle	Excellent	18.7	33.2	109	1564
Income					
	Very	28.1	35.7	164	1682
	Good				
	Good	35.3	25.5	206	1199

	Fair	12	5	70	235
	Poor	5.8	0.6	34	28
	Total N			583	4708
Middle High	Excellent	20.3	40	71	3477
Income	Very Good	24.4	35.5	85	3079
	Good	40.4	20.9	141	1817
	Fair	12.3	3.1	43	267
	Poor	2.6	0.5	9	42
	Total N			349	8682

Appendix B

The USDA Household Food Security Survey Module

- "[I/We] worried whether [my/our] food would run out before [I/we] got money to buy more. "Was that offen, sometimes, or never true for you in the last 12 months?
- "The food that [UWe] bought just did not last, and [Uwe] didn't have money to get more, "Was that often, sometimes, or never true for you in the last 12 months?
- "[I/We] couldn't afford to eat balanced meals." Was that often, sometimes, or never true for you in the last 12 months?
- 4. "[UWe] relied on only a few kinds of low-cost food to feed the children because [1 was/we were] running out of money to buy food." Was that often, senetimes, or never true for you in the last 12 months?
- 5. In the last 12 months, did you (or other adults in your household) ever cut the size of your meals or skip meals because there wasn't enough money for food?

- "[I/We] couldn't feed the children a balanced meal, because [I/we] couldn't afford that." Was that often, sometimes, or never true for you in the last 12 months?
- In the last 12 months, did you ever eat less than you felt you should because there wasn't enough money to buy food?
- [Ask only if # 5 = YES] How often did this happen-almost every month, some months but not every month, or in only 1 or 2 months?
- "The children were not eating enough because [I/we] just couldn't afford enough food." Was that often, sometimes, or never true for you in the last 12 months?
- 10. In the last 12 months, were you ever hungry but didn't eat because you couldn't afford enough food?
- 11. Sometimes people lose weight because they don't have enough to eat. In the last 12 months, did you lose weight because there wasn't enough food?
- 12. In the last 12 months, did you ever cut the size of any of the children's meals because there wasn't enough money for food?

- 13. In the last 12 months, did you (or other adults in your household) ever not eat for a whole day because there wasn't enough money for food?
- 14. In the last 12 months, were the children ever hungry but you just couldn't afford more food?
- 15. [Ask only if #13=YES] How often did this happen-almost every month, some months, but not every month, or in only 1 or 2 months?
- 16. In the last 12 months, did any of the children ever skip a meal because there wasn't enough money for food?
- [Ask only if #16 = YES] How often did this happen-almost every month, some months, some months but not every month, or in only 1 or 2 months?
- In the last 12 months, did any of the children ever not ent for a whole day because there was not enough money for food?







